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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Dr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, aged 85, is Chairperson and
an executive director (the “Director”) of Raymond Industrial
Limited (the “Company”). He obtained a Bachelor of
Engineering Degree (Chemical Engineering) in 1959 from
McGill University in Canada. He was a lecturer at the Hong
Kong Technical College. In 1964, Dr. Wong founded the
Company. In 1998, he was awarded a honorary Doctor of
Science from McGill University in Canada.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man, aged 55, was appointed as an
executive Director on 15 September 1997. He graduated
from the University of Manchester Institute of Science &
Technology in 1987 and joined the Company in the same
year. He worked as an engineer, project coordinator,
engineering manager and then general manager for
operations.

Dr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, aged 55, son of Dr.
Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 18 July 2001 and re-designated as an
executive Director on 19 April 2002. He became a deputy
executive chairperson on 19 April 2007. Dr. Wong holds
a bachelor degree in chemical engineering, a master
degree in economics and a doctorate degree in business
administration. He is a member of American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (CPA), a Chartered Global
Management Accountant (CGMA), a Certified Management
Accountant (CMA) and holds a certificate in financial
management (CFM). He is an independent non-executive
director of Modern Healthcare Technology Holdings Limited
(formerly Modern Beauty Salon Holdings Limited) (stock
code: 0919), and Nan Nan Resources Enterprise Limited
(stock code: 1229), companies whose shares are listed
on The Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He is also an independent
non-executive director of Tak Lee Machinery Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2102, which has transferred of listing
of its shares from GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 8142) to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with
effect from 6 October 2020). He was an independent non-
executive Director of Zhejiang United Investment Holdings
Group Limited (stock code: 8366), a company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange until 9 March 2021. Dr. Wong
is Vice President and council member of the Hong Kong
Independent Non-Executive Director Association and an
independent manager of TWGHs Wong Fut Nam College.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

REEEREREBEAEHN

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing, aged 58, was alternate Director to
Dr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, the Chairperson and executive
Director of the Company until 1st July 2008 when he was
appointed as an executive Director with effect from 1 July
2008. Mr. Mok joined the Company as a production planning
coordinator in 1990. He was appointed as a production
manager in 1993 and general manager of Raymond (Panyu
Nansha) Electrical Appliances Development Co. Ltd. in 1996.
Since 2005, Mr. Mok has been appointed as a member
of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in
Guangzhou City, Nansha District.

Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit, aged 57, was appointed
a non-executive Director on 26 May 2014. Mr. Wong is
a Registered Architect and Authorized Person in Hong
Kong. He is also a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Architects. Mr. Wong is the founder and executive director of
Hong Kong Wine Vault.

Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng, aged 51, was appointed as a
non-executive Director on 3 January 2011. Mr. Xiong
graduated from the Department of Computer Science of
Nankai University and obtained his bachelor degree in
science in July 1992. He then obtained his master degree
in Economics from Nankai University School of Economics
in July 1995. Mr. Xiong is currently the chairperson and
executive director of AKM Industrial Company Limited
(“AKM Industrial”) (stock code: 1639), a company whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. He is a director of
Alpha Luck Industrial Limited(“Alpha Luck”), the substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of AKM
Industrial since March 2001 (Alpha Luck is AKM Industrial’s
beneficial owner). Mr. Xiong also serves as an executive
director of AKM Electronics Industrial (Panyu) Ltd. and AKM
Electronic Technology (Suzhou) Company Limited. He is the
chairperson of AKM Meadville Electronics (Xiamen) Co., Ltd.
since December 2019.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung, aged 78, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director in 1988. He is
an entrepreneur with extensive international experience in
garment manufacturing and trading. He is the founder of the
Onwel Group of Companies in 1969 and has been holding
the position of executive chairperson since 1982. Also, Mr.
Leung is the executive chairperson of Fairtex Muay Thai
Fitness and Equipment (Hong Kong) Limited effected from
25 October 2013. He was an independent non-executive
director of Dickson Concepts (International) Limited (stock
code: 0113), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange from January 2014 to August 2019. Mr.
Leung had retired by rotation at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 22 May 2020.

Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da, aged 60, joined in 1994 as an
independent non-executive Director. Mr. Fan holds a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from the United States
of America. He is the chairperson and managing director
of AsiaLink Capital Limited. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Technovator International Limited
(stock code: 1206), Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (stock
code: 0220), Shanghai Industrial Urban Development Group
Limited (stock code: 0563), China Dili Group (stock code:
1387), Tenfu (Cayman) Holdings Company Ltd. (stock code:
6868), CITIC Resources Holdings Limited (stock code:
1205), Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 2882), China Development Bank International
Investment Ltd. (stock code: 1062), Neo-Neon Holdings
Ltd. (stock code: 1868) and Semiconductor Manufacturing
International Corporation (stock code: 981), all listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming, aged 84, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 2 July 2004. Mr.
Ng was previously a non-executive director of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 0440), a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. He has
over 40 years of experience in hire purchase and leasing
finance.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

REEEREREBEAEHN

Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun, aged 47, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 1 January
2013. He has more than 15 years of working experience in
investment banking and advising on corporate finance. He is
currently a deputy general manager of Guotai Junan Capital
Limited and independent non-executive director of Kingdom
Holdings Limited (stock code: 0528), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He also has many
years of experience in the field of auditing and accounting.
He is a member of the American Institute of CPA, a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant and
a member of CFA Institute. Mr. Lo obtained his bachelor
of commerce degree from University of British Columbia in
1995.

Ms. Ling, Imma Kit Sum, aged 66, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 1 June 2020.
Ms. Ling is a Certified Public Accountant and a retired
assurance partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers. She is also
an independent non-executive director of Digital Hollywood
Interactive Limited (stock code: 2022), Wise Ally International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 9918) and EVA Precision
Industrial Holdings Limited (stock code: 0838), all of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Ms.
Ling is a council member of The Education University of
Hong Kong and a board member of the Estate Agents
Authority. She serves as a member of the Appeal Board
Panel (Town Planning) and Hospital Governing Committee
of Hospital Authority. Ms. Ling is a council member of The
Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups and an executive
committee member of the Hong Kong Youth Hostels
Association. She previously served as a board member
of the Employees Compensation Assistance Fund Board
(2006-2012). Ms. Ling is a member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, Chartered Professional Accountants,
Canada, and Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants. She is an accredited general mediator.
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| am pleased to present the annual results of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

During the financial year (“FY”) of 2020, the Group
experienced the COVID-19 pandemic, temporary disruption
at our Nansha production facilities after the Chinese New
Year, and faced the challenges of increasing operating costs
and continuous US China trade dispute. Despite all these
uncertainties, with the supportive fiscal policy and local
government subsidies on social insurance in The People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and improved efficiency from
accelerated digital transformation effort, the Group managed
to launch more new and innovative products during the
second half of 2020 to achieve outstanding performance
for the full year. Consequently, for FY2020, the Group’s
consolidated turnover increased to HK$1,289,515,000,
representing an increase of 11.59% as compared with the
same corresponding period in FY2019. Net profit of the
Group was HK$63,218,000, representing an increase of
62.21%, as compared with the net profit of HK$38,973,000
of the same corresponding period in FY2019. Net cash
generated from operations was HK$79,910,000 in FY2020.
Bank and cash balances as at 31 December 2020 was
HK$291,894,000 (of which HK$29,670,000 were dividend
paid out during FY2020) as compared with HK$255,198,000
at the beginning of FY2020. The positive operating cash
flow and substantial cash balances enable the Group to
continue paying dividends to the shareholders. At the same
time, the Group continue to invest excess cash in research
and development (“R&D”), new technology and automation
equipment. Consequently, the Group continue to qualify as a
High and New Technology Enterprise (‘HNTE”) in the PRC.
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Chairperson’s Statement
TE®RE

In FY2020, the Group had started several R&D research
projects in Hong Kong as well as in the PRC. To achieve AloT
(Artifical Intelligence and Internet of Things) compatibility,
the Group has invested in the information systems and
automated production processes to convert the operations
to be 5G ready and can utilize big data and mobile
surveillance systems to improve quality systems. As a resullt,
the Group’s management can update strategies and react
to changes quickly in highly competitive global markets. In
FY2020, the Group invested HK$15,507,000 (compared
with HK$27,780,000 in 2019) to purchase injection moulding
machines and laboratory testing equipment to strengthen
our R&D and operational capabilities, and upgraded our
information systems to enhance faster data processing and
analysis. Despite decreased capital expenditures related
to new R&D projects, product development costs (Note 9)
increased from HK$40,844,000 in 2019 to HK$44,555,000
in 2020; and net R&D and product development costs still
met the high technology venture minimum annual investment
requirement. We expect the investment in these R&D
projects will generate more sales revenue in 2021 from new
products launch. Qualifying for the high technology venture
status would enable the Group to enjoy lower profit tax rate
and receive tax incentives from the PRC Government; and
increase our competitiveness among our peers.

The Group’s net profit in FY2020 was HK$63,218,000,
representing basic earnings per share of 12.78 Hong Kong
cents (net profit in FY2019 was HK$38,973,000, with basic
earnings per share of 7.89 Hong Kong cents)

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), | would
like to extend the Board’s appreciation to all our staff for their
hard work and dedication throughout the year ended 31
December 2020.

Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
Chairperson
Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL POSITION

The liquidity position of the Group was satisfactory. Its
current ratio was 2.62 as of 31 December 2020 (31
December 2019: 2.81). The quick ratio of the Group was
2.08 as of 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: 2.28).
The gearing ratio of the Group was 0.45 as of 31 December
2020 (31 December 2019: 0.38), which was computed by
the trade and other payables over total equity.

During FY2020, the Group’s trade receivables turnover
stood at 83 days, compared with 81 days in FY2019. The
inventory turnover in FY2020 was 59 days, compared with
45 days in FY2019.

Bank and cash balances were HK$291,894,000 as of 31
December 2020 (2019: HK$255,198,000), representing
an increase of HK$36,696,000 as compared to that in the
same corresponding period in FY2019, which was mainly
due to lower capital expenditure.

There were no bank borrowings as of 31 December 2020
(2019: Nil).

The Group had no contingent liabilities as of 31 December
2020 (2019: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, the capital structure of the Company has
not been changed with details shown in note 23(a) to the
financial statements.

FINAL DIVIDEND AND SPECIAL DIVIDEND

The Board has proposed a final dividend of 4 Hong Kong
cents per ordinary share (2019: 4 Hong Kong cents per
ordinary share) and a special dividend of 2 Hong Kong
cents per ordinary share (2019: Nil) for the year ended 31
December 2020. The proposed final dividend and special
dividend, if approved by the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, will be paid on Wednesday, 9 June
2021 to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Monday, 31 May
2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEFWR DM

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed for
the following periods:

(1) For the purpose of determining shareholders who
are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on Friday, 21 May
2021 (the “2021 AGM"), the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Monday, 17 May
2021 to Friday, 21 May 2021, both days inclusive. In
order to be qualified for attending and voting at the
2021 AGM, all transfer documents, accompanied
by the relevant share certificates, should be lodged
for registration with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30
p.m. on Friday, 14 May 2021.

For the purpose of determining shareholders who
are qualified for the final dividend and the special
dividend, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Thursday, 27 May 2021 to
Monday, 31 May 2021, both days inclusive. In order
to be qualified for the final dividend and the special
dividend, all transfer documents, accompanied by
the relevant share certificates, should be lodged
for registration with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30
p.m. on Wednesday, 26 May 2021.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

The Group had no charges on assets as of 31 December
2020 (2019: Nil).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the Group’s transactions were conducted in the
United States dollars, British Pound, Hong Kong dollars
and Renminbi. The Group does not foresee any substantial
exposure to foreign currency fluctuations and thus use of
financial instruments for exchange rate hedging purpose is
not considered.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD,
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not
have any significant investments, material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during
the year.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not
have other plans for material investments or capital assets
during the year.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Despite continuous US-China trade tension, the Group’s
management looks at new business opportunities in
South Korea, Japan, the United Kingdom and Europe.
The Group’s management has identified several new areas
that we can apply our new technologies to develop more
innovative products, not only in grooming and air purification
categories, but also in beverage related new product
category. The Group’s investment in R&D enables us to
maintain the HNTE status and allows the Group to apply
new knowledge, patents and innovations developed in the
new products and explore new product categories.

The Group’s management is cautious about future business
outlook as global economic and political uncertainties, as
well as persistent COVID-19 pandemic, have continued
to affect the timing of new products launch. Furthermore,
the Group has already experienced increased raw material
costs in plastic resins and metal, and reduction in gross
profit margins of certain product category for US market
such as air purification products which have been adversely
affected by 25% tariffs imposed by the new US government
administration under President Biden. In the past, our
customers could apply for a tariff waiver but such waiver had
been suspended since January 1, 2021. We will continue
to work with our customers to seek for tariff waiver or relief
from the US government.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEFWR DM

To diversify risk associated with the industries and markets,
the Group’s management will take a strategic approach to
focus on the three aspects of the new normal to explore
more new business opportunities, namely user-centered
insight, creative ideating, and agile iterating.

User-centered insight is a management tool for top
management to analyse how old consumers habits put to
rest while new habits are emerging. For example, our sales
& marketing team members work closely with our customers
to explore new business opportunities in the e-commerce
platform, and our R&D team develops new products that
would be more suited to the new habits as more consumers
stay home after the COVID-19 pandemic outbreak.

Creative ideating involves creative teams, design teams
and R&D teams at our customers and at our facilities
to collaborate online via Cisco WebEx, Microsoft Team
and Zoom in face of travel restriction that made it almost
impossible for creative team members to congregate
in person. Using technologies that allow for real-time
interaction can enhance remote individual ideation and
remote group brain-storming sessions and discussion.

As many countries adopted social distancing rules and
regulations, agile iterating allows our creative teams to work
closely with our customers online intensively for one to two
weeks period to run experiments on innovations, sometimes
using virtual reality tools, to adapt to a non-physical end-
user experimentation/simulation to foster a learning-from-
failure culture that tolerate failed virtual experimentation/
simulation results to refine and optimise the new product
design, features and performance. Successful adaptation to
a more flexible and courageous innovation environment can
create a cost-effective platform to innovate new products at
faster speed and lower costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In the year 2020, the Group invested and promoted
computerization of manufacturing. In 2021, the Group will
complete integration of our ERP system with new financial
analytic software to enable cross functional transformation
that can unlock the Group’s full operational potential.
By scrutinizing the entire end-to-end process, from
understanding customer needs to the delivery of finished
products, the Group’s management can address the entire
value chain to open up new business opportunities, make
more efficient use of working capital and better manage
discretionary spending. In addition, the Group’s management
is looking at the feasibility of formulating a big data strategy
in manufacturing so that the management team can have
access to real-time data from various process activities to
execute routine decisions in the following areas: (a) tracking
of product quality and defects, (b) supply chain real-time
management, (c) optimizing machines and related predictive
maintenance, and (d) engineering, process and quality
analytics.

In light of the difficulty experienced by other OEM
manufacturers who relocated their factories to Southeast
Asia, the Group has no immediate plan to set up new
factories in Vietnam, Thailand or Indonesia. The Group’s
management will instead find strategic partners with existing
production facilities in Southeast Asia to form a strategic
alliance or invest in companies that have existing production
facilities in Southeast Asia.

STAFF

The Group currently employs approximately 32 Hong
Kong staff members and provides them with the
mandatory provident fund. Our factory in the PRC employs
approximately 480 to 510 staff members, and workers
employed directly or indirectly approximately ranged
from 2,200 to 2,600 during the year ended 31 December
2020. Remuneration is determined by reference to their
qualifications, experiences and performances.
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Report of the Directors
ESERSE

The Board has the pleasure to submit the annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong
and has its registered office and principal place of business
at Rooms 1801-1813, 18th Floor, Grandtech Centre, 8 On
Ping Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES & BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is sale of electrical
home appliances. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 28 to the financial statements. Further discussion and
analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and
an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business, can be found in the Chairmen’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 7
to 13 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of the
directors’ report.

Review on the Group’s business
performance
— Analysis using financial
key performance indicators

Pages 7 to 13
Page 9
Principal risks and uncertainties

facing the Group
Future prospects of the Group

Pages 1110 13
Pages 11 t0 13

The Company will publish its standalone Environmental,
Social and Governance Report for the year ended
31 December 2020 on the websites of the Stock
Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(http://www.raymondfinance.com) in due course.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 and the state of affairs of the Group as at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 54 to 135.
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FIVEYEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 136
of this annual report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Company maintains good relationships with its
employees by taking all practicable measures, including
but not limited to improving, reviewing and updating its
polices on remuneration and benefits, training, occupational
health and safety, to ensure that all the staff are reasonably
remunerated.

The Company is in good relationship with its customers
and is always improving its communication mechanism with
customers to ensure all the complaints or feedback from its
customers can be informed by the Company in time and the
customers receive service of high quality.

The Company maintains long-period good cooperation with
its domestic and overseas suppliers, which are of good
reputation in the industry.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of revenues from sales of goods and
purchases attributable to the Group’s major customers and
suppliers during the financial year are as follows:
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Percentage of
the Group’s total
rEEzEHBESE

Revenue from

sales of goods Purchases
HEERIKA R
The largest customer BAEP 24.48% N/ATiERA
Five largest customers in aggregate  ~ AARF A 87.40% N/ATTiE
The largest supplier BAHIER N/A g 9.44%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AAREEEEET N/A 73 FR 25.21%

None of directors, their associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any
interest in these major customers and suppliers during the
year.
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Report of the Directors
EZERSE

RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND

An interim dividend of 2 Hong Kong cents per ordinary share
was paid for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 2
Hong Kong cents). The Board proposed a final dividend of
4 Hong Kong cents per ordinary share (2019: final dividend
of 4 Hong Kong cents per ordinary share) and a special
dividend of 2 Hong Kong cents per ordinary share (2019: Nil)
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

ISSUED SHARES

Details of the movements in the issued shares of the
Company during the year are set out in note 23(a) to the
financial statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during
the year are set out in note 29(b) to the financial statements.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae (Chairperson)
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man

Dr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing

Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung (resigned on 22 May 2020)
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da

Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming

Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun

Ms. Ling, Imma Kit Sum (appointed on 1 June 2020)

Alternate Director:
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun (alternate to Dr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae)
(resigned on 2 June 2020)
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During the year and up to the date of this report, Dr. Wong,
Wilson Kin Lae; Mr. Wong, John Ying Man; Dr. Wong,
Raymond Man Hin; Mr. Mok, Kin Hing and Mr. Zhang,
Yuankun (resigned on 2 June 2020) are also directors in
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Other directors of the
Company’s subsidiaries during the year and up to the date
of this report include: Mr. Law, Anthony Kwok Yung and Ms
Luk, Yin Yee.

In accordance with Article 95 of the Company’s articles of
association (“Articles of Association”), Ms. Ling, Imma Kit
Sum will hold office until the 2021 AGM, being eligible, will
offer herself for re-election at the 2021 AGM.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association,
Dr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, Mr. Xiong Zhengfeng and Mr.
Fan, Anthony Ren Da will retire from the Board by rotation
at the forthcoming 2021 AGM. Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da
has elected not to offer himself for re-election and will retire
at the conclusion of the 2021 AGM, while all other retiring
Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the 2021 AGM.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is
not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

The non-executive Directors do not have specific terms

of appointment but are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles of Association.
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Report of the Directors
EZERSE

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests of the Directors
in the shares of the Company, its subsidiaries and other
associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were
as follows:
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Report of the Directors
ESERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND EERAQAR B RABBERMPER (&)
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

() Interests in issued shares () BITRGOER
Number of shares
ko#E
% of total
Issued
Personal Family  Corporate Share Shares
Capacity Interests Interests Interests Options Total AFHEET
LT} BAER  FEEZ  iEER BhRE B RBBLIE
(Note 1) (Note 5) (Note 6)
(1) (55) (356)
Executive Directors
HiTEE
Dr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae Interest of spouse & Interest - 150,000 107,198,981 - 107,348,981 21.71%
BUAEL of a controlled corporation (Note 2) (Note 3)
RBaER RX R BN R (32) (33)
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man Beneficial Owner 15,639,448 - - 3,000,000 18,639,448 3.77%
BHREUE EREEA
Dr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin Beneficial owner 16,427,972 - - - 16,427,972 3.32%
BXERL ER#ERA
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing Beneficial owner 1,825,000 - - 3000000 4,825,000 0.98%
BpELs EREEA
Non-Executive Directors
FHTEE
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng Beneficial owner - - - 1,200,000 1,200,000 0.24%
RREBEE EREEA
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit Beneficial owner 1,350,000 - - - 1,350,000 0.27%
BHREEE EREEA (Note 4)
(34)
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUHHTEE
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da Beneficial Owner 1,638,100 - - - 1,638,100 0.33%
BLELE ERERA
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun Beneficial Owner 300,000 - - - 300,000 0.06%
BEERE ER#ERA
FIREZABRAF —T_THFH 19



Report of the Directors
EZERSE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

(i)  Interests in issued shares (Continued)
Notes:
(1) The shares are registered under the names of the Directors

who are the beneficial shareholders.

2) Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai, spouse of Dr. Wong, Wilson
Kin Lae, is the beneficial shareholder.

Q) Dr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae is the beneficial shareholder of
91.7% of the issued shares of Diamond-Harvest Limited,
which owned 107,198,981 shares of the Company as at 31
December 2020.

(4) Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit is one of the executors of the
estate of the late Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang. He has
reported that he has interest in the 40,205,688 shares of
the Company held by the corporations controlled by the
late Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang and his spouse.

5) Share options are granted to the Directors under the
Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) approved by the
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting on 6
June 2003, details of which are set out in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” below. The Scheme was
terminated on 5 June 2013.

6) The percentage was compiled based on the total number
of issued shares of the Company (i.e. 494,499,860 ordinary
shares) as at 31 December 2020.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent long
positions in the shares.

(i)  Interests in underlying shares

Apart from as disclosed under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” below, none of the Directors or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age
has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company, or any of its holding
Company, subsidiaries or other associated corporations, as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during
the year or subsisting at the end of the year are set out
below,

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share options are granted to the Directors, employees
and other eligible participants specified under the Scheme
approved by shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting on 6 June 2003. Details of the
Scheme are as follows:

Purpose To give eligible participants incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group

Participants (i

=

Directors, employees of any member
of the Group or any controlling
shareholder of the Company
(“Controlling Shareholder”) or any
company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder,

(i Holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or
any Controlling Shareholder of the
Company or any company controlled
by a Controlling Shareholder,

(iii) (@) any business or joint venture

partner, contractor, agent or

representative of,

(b) any supplier of goods or

services to, or

(c) any customer or distributor of

goods or services of,

Any member of the Group or any Controlling
Shareholder or a company controlled by a
Controlling Shareholder;

and for the purpose of the Scheme, shall
include any company controlled by one or
more persons belonging to any of the above
classes of persons
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Total number of
ordinary shares
available for issue
and the percentage
of the issued share
capital that it
represents as at the
date of the annual
report

8,150,000 ordinary shares and
1.65% of the issued share capital

Maximum entitlement of 1% of the aggregate number of

each participant

Period within which the
securities must be
taken up under
an option

Minimum period for
which an option
must be held before
it can be exercised

Amount payable on
acceptance of
the option

Period within which
payments must

be made

Basis of determining
the exercise price

The remaining life of
the Scheme

22

ordinary shares in issue in any
12-month period up to the date of
grant

Within a maximum period of 10
years commencing from the date
of grant of such options

Not applicable

HK$1.00 for each lot of share
options granted

21 days from the date of the offer

The higher of (i) the closing price
of the shares on the offer date or
(i) the average closing price of
the shares for the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the offer
of the option, provided that the
exercise price is not less than the
nominal value of the share

The Scheme shall remain in force
until 5 June 2013 unless otherwise
terminated in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Directors, employees and
other participants had the following interests in options to
subscribe for shares of the Company (closing price per
share on 31 December 2020 was HK$1.06) which were
granted for a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of options
under the Scheme. The options are unlisted. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share
of the Company.

No. of options

Report of the Directors

EESHE
BRESTE (®)
R2020F 12 A31H EF - EENEMBREATRER

BHRHEAATER  ZFBREDRIEERER S ASH
BRERE1ETRN  ATRBAXAB (K 20205 12
A1 BERWTER1.06ET) - BRELE EH - &)
BREETHEARNRE -BARBZ @K -

EREHE
Weighted
average
closing
Market price
value immediately
per share  before the
Held at 1st Granted Lapsed  Exercised Outstanding Period atdate  date of
January during during during at the duringwhich  Exercise of grant  exercise
2020 the year the year the year year end options are price per  of options* 25
R2020% RER RER RER  RERM  Date exercisable share  RERE TEEH
1A18 itz ez iz AfTEZ  granted ERETTR B8R RUEAHz ZAKME
&% BREHE  BREHE  RREHE  BRREHE RHAE 288 kB SHROE* THYHE
HKS HKS HK$
BT AT BT
Directors
£
Executive Directors:
HiTEE
Mr. Wang, John Ying Man 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 20 July2012 20 July 20120 0690 0.690 -
ERAEE 19 July 2022
127208 2012874208%
02%7F198
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 20 July2012 20 July 20120 0690 0.690 -
Bipft 19.July 2022
127208 201274208%
02%7F198
NEEBXARAR —T-ZTHFFH
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EEERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) iE R el ()
No. of options
EREHE
Weighted
average
closing
Market price
value immediately
per share  before the
Held at 1st Granted Lapsed  Exercised Outstanding Period atdate  date of
January during during during at the duringwhich  Exercise of grant  exercise
2020 the year the year the year year end options are price per  of options* 2%
R2020% RER RER RER  RERM Date exercisable share  RERE TEBH
1A18 itz ez iz AfTEZ  granted ERETTR B8R RUEAHz ZAKME
&% BREHA  BREHE  RREHE  BRREHE RHRE pdf ] kB SHROE* THYHE
HKS HKS HK$
BT AT BT
Non-Executive Directors:
HHTEE
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 20 July 2012 20 July 20120 0690 0.690 -
RERTE 19 July 2022
127208 2012874208%
02%7F198
Employees 950,000 - - - 950,000 20 July 2012 20 July 20120 0690 0.690 -
] 19.July 2022
1287208 2012874208%
02%7F198
8,150,000 - - - 8,150,000
Notes: BfE -

The options granted to the Directors are registered under the names

of the Directors who are the beneficial owners.

*

Being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s
ordinary shares immediately before the dates on which the

options were granted or exercised (as the case may be).

Information on the accounting policy for the options granted
and the weighted average value per option is provided

in note 4(p) and note 22 to the financial statements

respectively.

24

BT EFZBIRETARS AEREAAZEE 2 REER -

* BIA A B BB B B O R AT E (ER) B AT
Z ORI E

BB @R LB ERENEFHEZEHND
P B TS R PR 4(0) KoM FE 22 -

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. Annual Report 2020



SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2020 was the Company, or any of its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, according to the register of
members kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO and so far as is known to, or can be ascertained
after reasonable enquiry by the Directors, the following
persons/entities, other than a Director, had an interest in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Report of the Directors
ESERE

BRESTE (®)

B FXEREE  REZE2020% 12 A31 B IEFEREM
Brfd - AR HEMIZERAR - WE AR HKERME A
A IEAMRE S A E AR R ST HE BB E
FgEm s AR @E 2 T2 T8 R -

FTERRREADF 2RO REERD 2 Es

20204 12 A31 B » AR AR IE 7 5 160 55 336 15 4R
EFEZBRRZLM  RESEELAEEREBAME
R THAL/ BE(TEEES) RARQ RN RARER

{5 eh AR IR DI XV 055 2 % 3 ) BB A A A 7]
58 2 3

Number of shares
RpEE
% of total
issued
Registered Corporate Family Total shares
Capacity shareholders interests interest BHEER BETRT
54 ERTRR EEER FEERE ROKEYHE OERES
(Note 5)
(5)
Substantial shareholders
Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai Beneficial Owner & 150,000 107,198,981 - 107,348,981 21.71%
ezt Interest of spouse (Note 1)
Ena AREENER (51)
Diamond-Harvest Limited Beneficial Owner 107,198,981 - - 107,198,981 21.68%
EREEA (Note 1)
(1)
Alpha Luck Industrial Limited Beneficial Owner 53,080,800 - - 53,080,800 10.73%
ZHEEXARAA EnABA (Note 2)
(7Z2)
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EZERSE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN FTERFERAQA T 2RO REERGD 2 EH

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued) ~ (#48)

Number of shares
ROBE

% of total

issued

Registered Corporate Family Total shares

Capacity shareholders interests interest AIEER BRTRT

54 BRTRR EEES FEEE ROBEHE OERES

(Note 5)

(3t5)

China North Industries Corp. Interest of a controlled - 53,080,800 - 53,080,800 10.73%
PRI IERARAA corporation (Note 2)
iNe 0= ol (5t2)

China North Industries Group Interest of controlled - 53,080,800 - 53,080,800 10.73%
Corporation Ltd. corporations (Note 2)
HEERTXEEERAR N0 ol (5t2)

China South Industries Group Interest of controlled - 53,080,800 - 53,080,800 10.73%
Corporation corporations (Note 2)
FHEREREERRAA iNee 0= ol (5t2)

Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang Interest of controlled - 40,205,688 - 40,205,688 8.13%
(deceased) corporations (Note 3)
BT EL (FHE) Nl ol (5£3)

Mrs. Wong Cheng, Interest of controlled - 40,205,688 - 40,205,688 8.13%
Gertude Kwok Cheung corporations (Note 3)
HEEEZL iNee 0= o (583)

Ho Kit Man Inc. Beneficial owner 40,119,688 - - 40,119,688 8.11%

ERBEAA (Note 3)
(73)

Mr. David Michael Webb Beneficial owner 13,137,345 21,477,655 - 34,615,000 7.00%
(“Mr. Webb") & interest of a (Note 4)
controlled corporation (74)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

(1) 107,198,981 shares of the Company were held through
Diamond-Harvest Limited. Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai
and her spouse, Dr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae hold 8.3% and
91.7% of the issued shares of Diamond-Harvest Limited,
respectively.

) Alpha Luck Industrial Company Limited is wholly and
beneficially owned by China North Industries Corp. China
North Industries Corp. is owned as to 37.54% by China
South Industries Group Corporation and 56.70% owned by
China North Industries Group Corporation Ltd.. The above
companies are wholly owned by Bz A EEERE S
&, Therefore, China North Industries Group Corporation
Ltd, China South Industries Group Corporation, China North
Industries Corp and BlIi5ft B EEERZ 8 E deemed
to be interested in the 53,080,800 shares of the Company
held by Alpha Luck Industrial Company Limited.

©)) Among these shares, 40,119,668 shares of the Company
were held through Ho Kit Man Inc. and 86,000 shares of
the Company held through Sunnydale Enterprises Holdings
Ltd.. These two companies were 50% controlled by the
late Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang (“the late Dr. Wong”) and
his spouse, Mrs. Wong Cheng, Gertude Kwok Cheung
(“Mrs. Wong”), respectively. The executors of the estate
of the late Dr. Wong are Mrs. Wong and Mr. Wong, David
Ying Kit. Mrs. Wong and Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit have
each reported that they have interest in the shares of the
late Dr. Wong. In addition, Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit has
reported to have personal interests in 1,350,000 shares of
the Company.

(4) The number of shares disclosed was based on the latest
disclosure of interest form filed on 5 August 2020 (the date
of relevant event be 31 July 2020) received from Mr. Webb.
According to the filed form, Mr. Webb beneficially owned
18,137,345 shares of the Company and 21,477,655 shares
of the Company were held through Preferable Situation
Assets Limited, a company wholly-owned by Mr. Webb.

5) The percentage was compiled based on the total number
of issued shares of the Company (i.e. 494,499,860 ordinary
shares) as at 31 December 2020.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent long
positions in the shares of the Company.

MREEBRAR —T_TFFH
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FTERRREADF 2RO REERD 2 EE

(&)
BiRE -
)

®)

©)

Diamond-Harvest Limited #4282 7] 107,198,981 J& & 15 -
FMEL R ERBEEZANE LS R A Diamond-Harvest
Limited 2 8.3% & 91.7% Z fx 1 #E%S

ZHEBEERARHPEILATEERAG 2 EEREE
BB IEERARATEEHBEFEERER
NEIRFEERTEEEBRAAD FIFHE37.54% &
56.70% c LA L AR BB E A EEEEEZES 2 EH
oAl PRERSETIXEEMARAR - PHEERES
BIERAR AR ATIEERAAILEKEEEE
ERZEEREARERTEEBRAFANBANAAR
53,080,800 PR {n 2 #E s o

ZEROEBRENEZZHEL((EREBL ) MER
BEEEEL LT ([EAK]) EHZ Ho Kit Man Inc. (5B
A 7140,119,668 P17 ) & Sunnydale Enterprises Holdings
Ltd (35 B AR 86,000 k%) #E - S BIHEEM
BRAEI50% [k NER - EMEBLHEBRITAZEAK
MERFELEE - EAAREBERBEEC S EBANMMRE
EMEETz2ROET  ARERAGTEEBMERER
A7) 1,350,000 B A% 1D 2 (B A% ©

B FE B9 A1) B E THAR #B WEBB 8 4 7R 20204F 8 A 5 A (48
BEHARA2020F7A31H) BRI EZEERE
BmE - RIBIRINERE  WEBBEA BB AR A
13,137,345 i f%n + ANA &) 21,477,655 I I 17 #% 38 WEBB
o2& B 1 Preferable Situation Assets Limited 54 ©

BARRE S IR E RN 20204 12 A 31 HE B2 BT %
494,499,860 LRI E -
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Report of the Directors
EZERSE

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of
the directors of the Company is currently in force and was
in force throughout this year. The Company has purchased
suitable insurances for the Directors with respect to their
possible legal proceedings.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

Except for the transactions disclosed in note 26(b) to
the financial statements, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance subsisted during or at the end of
the year in which the Director or an entity connected with
the Director is or was materially interested, either directly or
indirectly.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE BUSINESS
COMPETING WITH THE COMPANY

The Directors have no interest in the business that is
competing with the Company during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against
such rights under the laws of Hong Kong, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to its existing shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No substantial contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or existed during
the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020, which
do not constitute connected transactions under the Listing
Rules are disclosed in note 26(b) to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there is no related party
transaction set out in note 26(b) to the financial statements
fall into the category of connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules. The Company has complied with the requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the
connected transaction.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
which covers all of the Group’s employees. Particulars of
these retirement schemes are set out in note 20 to the
financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group did not make any charitable
donation.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

MREEBRAR —T_TFFH
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Report of the Directors
ESERSE

AUDITORS

Messrs. Baker Tilly Hong Kong Ltd. has retired as the
auditors of the Company upon expiration of its term of office
at the close of the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 22 May 2020. RSM Hong Kong (“RSM”) has been
appointed as the auditors of the Company with effect from
1 June 2020. Save as disclosed above, there have been no
other changes of auditors in the past three years.

The consolidated financial statement’s have been audited by
RSM who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of RSM will

be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board

Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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The Company puts great emphasis on corporate
governance by reviewing and strengthening corporate
governance measures from time to time. The board of the
Company believes that shareholders can derive maximum
benefits from good corporate governance.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company was in compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), with an exception of
a deviation from code provision A.4.1 and A.4.3 of the CG
Code in respect of the service term of independent non-
executive directors.

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term and subject
to re-election.

None of the existing non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) of the Company is
appointed for a specific term. This constitutes a deviation
from code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code. However, all of
them are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association.

Under code provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, independent
non-executive directors who serve more than 9 years
could be relevant to the determination of a non-executive
director’s independence. If an independent non-executive
director serves more than 9 years, his further appointment
should be subject to a separate resolution to be approved
by shareholders. The papers to shareholders accompanying
that resolution should include the reasons why the board
believes he is still independent and should be re-elected.

MREEBRAR —T_TFFH
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Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da and Mr. Ng Yiu Ming have served
in the Group for more than 9 years. This constitutes a
deviation from code provision A.4.3 of the CG Code.
However, all independent non-executive directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association and
voting by members is by way of a separate resolution. In
addition, the Company has received the annual confirmation
of independence from each independent non-executive
director and the Board believes that the independent
non-executive directors continue to be independent. The
Company will state the reason why the relevant independent
non-executive director who is subject to rotation and re-
election is still independent and should be re-elected in the
shareholders’ circular.

In view of the above, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the standard of
the Company’s corporate governance practices is not lower
than those required in the CG Code.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors
and established written guidelines no less exacting than the
Model Code for senior management and specified persons
who are likely to possess inside information in relation to the
Group.

Having made specific enquiry, all the directors confirmed that
they had complied with the required standards as set out in
the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2020.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Company’s corporate governance structure includes
the Board and three committees under the Board, namely
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee. The Board stipulates the terms of reference for
all committees in writing and specifies clearly the power and
responsibilities of the committees.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises four executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors, and four independent non-executive
Directors. Each of the non-executive Directors (including
the independent non-executive Directors) is appointed for
an unspecified term. Please refer to page 16 of this annual
report for composition of the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors have complied with
the requirements of the Listing Rules and have submitted to
the Company annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed
their independence and confirms that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent parties as defined in the
Listing Rules. Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung was appointed
on 16 March 1988 and resigned on 22 May 2020; Mr. Fan,
Anthony Ren Da was appointed on 12 December 1994;
Mr. Ng Yiu Ming was appointed on 2 July 2004; Mr. Lo,
Wilson Kwong Shun was appointed on 1 January 2013 and
Ms. Ling, Imma Kit Sum was appointed on 1 June 2020.
The appointment of Directors is not fixed for a specified
term, but they are subject to the retirement and re-election
requirements at every annual general meeting pursuant to
the Articles of Association.

The family relationship among the Directors is summarised
as follows:

Dr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae is the father of Dr. Wong,
Raymond Man Hin and uncle of Mr. Wong, John Ying Man
and Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man and Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit are
brothers and they are cousins of Dr. Wong, Raymond Man
Hin.

The Directors have conducted a review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The Board convenes at least four regular meetings each
year, and will convene further meetings when necessary.
When a regular Board meeting is convened, the Board
documents will be sent to the Directors for review before
the meeting pursuant to the Listing Rules and the CG Code
so that the Directors can keep abreast of the information
to perform their duties and responsibilities. The Board
convened 4 regular meetings in 2020.
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The attendance of directors is as follows: BEEHEBEROT :
No. of general
No. of Board meetings attended/
meetings attended/ eligible to attend Attendance
eligible to attend Attendance HERRAE
Director Name HEEZEEENY/ Rate KB/ EER Rate
ESER RERERESEERRY HREE HERRASRE HEE
Executive Directors HITEE
Dr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae U MEL 4/4 100% il 100%
(Chairperson) (/)
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man HRGSE 4/4 100% 1/1 100%
Dr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin  ZX#{E L 4/4 100% 1/1 100%
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing RRELE 4/4 100% 0N 0%
Non-Executive Directors HHNTEE
Mr. Xiong Zhengfeng BRI A 3/4 75% 0/1 0%
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit HRERE 4/4 100% il 100%
Independent Non-Executive B FHiTEE
Directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung 2B 4 2/2 100% il 100%
(resigned on 22 May 2020) (B 2020% 5 A 22 BEHT)
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BLERE 4/4 100% 11 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming hRRxE 4/4 100% 11 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun ~ BREE L4 4/4 100% il 100%
Ms. Ling, Imma Kit Sum ERLT L 2/2 100% 0/0 N/ATEFR

(appointed on 1 June 2020) (202046 A 1 BIZ(T)

The remuneration of Directors is determined with reference
to their functions and responsibilities in the Company,
the performance of the Company and the current
market conditions. No Director is allowed to participate
in determining his own remuneration. The remuneration
received by Directors from the Company during the year
is set out in note 10 of the financial statements. The
Board has set up an independent professional consulting
procedure and upon reasonable request, Directors are able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expenses.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the chairperson also
held meeting with independent non-executive Directors
without presence of executive Directors during the year.
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All the Directors have participated in continuous professional
development, e.g. updated Listing Rules training, to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills provided by
the Group. The Company maintained the training records
received by each of the Directors in FY2020

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises four independent non-
executive Directors with extensive experience in accounting
or legal matters. The audit committee was established
with specific written terms of reference, mainly responsible
for reviewing the financial statements and annual and
interim reports and quarterly accounts of the Company,
submitting relevant reports and recommendations to
the Board, reviewing the Company’s financial controls,
internal control and risk management systems and making
recommendations on the appointment and remuneration of
the auditors of the Company and any matters related to the
termination of appointment. Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung
was chairperson of the audit committee (resigned on 22 May
2020). Ms. Ling, Imma Kit Sum (appointed on 1 June 2020)
is chairperson of the audit committee and is responsible
for reporting the results and recommendations of the audit
committee to the Board after each meeting.

In 2020, the audit committee convened 4 regular meetings.
Members of the audit committee and their attendance are
as follows:
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No. of meetings

attended/
eligible to attend Attendance
Member Name HESERE Rate
REEE CERHEERRE HE =
Ms. Ling, Imma Kit Sum (Chairperson) ERONETE(FE) 2/2 100%
(appointed on 1 June 2020) (20204 6 B 1 B EE)
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung RIS A& 2/2 100%
(resigned on 22 May 2020) (B 7820204 5 A 22 A&HT)
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BlELE 4/4 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming hiBRA ST AE 4/4 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BEETE 4/4 100%
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Tasks undertaken by the audit committee during the year
included reviewing the 2019 audited financial statements
and the annual results announcement, reviewing the interim
report for the six months ended 30 June 2020 and the
interim results announcement, considering the accounting
standards adopted, reviewing the explanatory letter about
audit submitted by the auditors to the management and
the response of the management, the basis of opinion and
qualified opinion (if any) made by the auditors in their report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control system to manage risks
on an ongoing basis to reasonably safeguard the interests
of the Company’s shareholders and the Group’s assets.
In addition, there is regular dialogue with the Group’s
internal and external auditors so that both are aware of the
significant factors which may affect their respective scope of
work.

The Board has approved an “Inside Information Policy” in
May 2013 with the aim to set out guidelines to the directors,
officers and all relevant employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries to ensure Inside Information of the Company is
to be disseminated to the public in equal and timely manner
in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations. The
term “relevant employee” refers to employee of the Group,
because of his/her office or employment, who is likely to be
in possession of the unpublished Inside Information.

The Group’s risk management includes regular identification
and review of business risks and control measures to
mitigate such risks. The Group internal control system
comprises of an established organizational structure as
well as comprehensive policies and standards. Area of
responsibilities of each business and functional unit is clearly
defined to ensure effective check and balance. Procedures
have been designed to safeguard assets from unauthorised
use or disposition, and to ensure that proper accounting
records are maintained and financial information used
internally and for publication is reliable. The internal control
procedures provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material errors, losses and fraud; but deem
sufficient to ensure full compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.
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The audit committee and the Board carry out an
overview every six months on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group.
The review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and risk controls. No material risk management
and internal control aspects of any significant discrepancies
were discovered during the review. Both the audit committee
and the Board expressed satisfaction over the effectiveness
and adequacy of both the internal control procedures and
risk management procedures for the year under review.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee comprises four independent
non-executive Directors and two executive Directors. The
remuneration committee was established with specific
written terms of reference, principally responsible for
reviewing and approving remuneration plans for directors
and senior management, determining the remuneration
package of executive directors and senior management,
including benefits, pension interests and the payment of
compensation. Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun is chairperson
of the remuneration committee and is responsible for
reporting the meeting results and recommendations of the
remuneration committee to the Board after each meeting.

In 2020, the remuneration committee convened 1 regular
meeting. Members of the remuneration committee and their
attendance are as follows:
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No. of meetings attended/

eligible to attend Attendance
Member Name HESRRE Rate
REAH SERHESELH i fE &
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun (Chairperson) BE(E5%4 (F/E) 1/1 100%
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung RIS A& 1/1 100%

(resigned on 22 May 2020) (B 7820204 5 A 22 A&HT)

Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BlERE 1/1 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming hiBRA ST AE 1/1 100%
Dr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin =X AT 0/1 0%
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man HREGGE 1/1 100%
Ms. Ling, Imma Kit Sum BRI 0/0 N/A 3 A

(appointed on 1 June 2020)
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Tasks undertaken by the remuneration committee
during the year included reviewing the remuneration
structure, remuneration policy and bonus system of the
Group, assessing performance of executive Directors,
considering the salary adjustment for the year and making
recommendations to the Board. The remuneration
committee also ensures that no Director or senior
management member determines his own remuneration.

The remuneration policy of the Group is to determine the
remuneration of executive Directors and senior management
based on their responsibilities, qualifications and working
performance. No Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration. The Company
has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to the
Directors, employees and other eligible participants. Details
of the share option scheme are set out in note 22 to the
financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee comprise four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming (Chairperson),
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung (resigned on 22 May 2020),
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da, Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun and
Ms. Ling, Imma Kit Sum (appointed on 1 June 2020). The
nomination committee is to deal with the appointment, re-
election and retirement of Directors.

The nomination committee considers that in terms of
professional experience, skill and knowledge and the
structure, size and composition of the Board, the present
members of the Board of the Company are generally in
line with the diversity policy of the Company concerning
board members, meeting the present situation and future
development plan of the Company.

Nomination of Directors and Nomination Policy

Pursuant to Article 95 of the Articles of Association, the
Board is entitled to appoint any person as Director from time
to time or at any time to fill a casual vacancy or add a new
member to the Board. In accordance with the Nomination
Policy of the Company, the nomination committee will
consider the nominee’s qualifications, capabilities and
potential to make contribution to the Company to identify
and evaluate an appropriate candidate for making
recommendations to the Board.
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Board diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and industry experience. All Board appointments
are based on meritocracy and considered against a variety
of criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

In 2020, the nomination committee convened 1 regular
meeting. Members of the nomination committee and their
attendance are as follows:
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No. of meetings attended/

eligible to attend Attendance
Member Name HESERE Rate
RERE EERHESRRE HE =R
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming (Chairperson) HIBEASLE (/) 1/1 100%
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung PR E 1/1 100%

(resigned on 22 May 2020) (BER 20204 5 B 22 HEHT)

Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BOELAE 1/1 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BEETE 1/1 100%
Ms. Ling, Imma Kit Sum BRI 0/0 N/A 3 A

(appointed on 1 June 2020)

Tasks undertaken by the nomination committee during the
year included reviewing the existing structure, size and
composition of the Board, reviewing the independence
of independent non-executive directors, reviewing the
existing Nomination Policy and Board Diversity Policy and
considering on making recommendations to the Board on
the proposed nomination of director and re-election of the
retiring directors at the annual general meeting.

ROLES OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is principally responsible for establishing the
development direction of the Group, formulating targets and
business development plans, approving major agreements
and matters, and monitoring the performances of senior
management. It is also responsible for corporate governance
with a view to enhance shareholders’ value. Led by the
three general managers, the management is responsible
for implementing the strategies and plans developed by the
Board.
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The Company has developed a schedule of matters
reserved to the Board for decisions and has separately
identified those functions reserved to the Board. The Board
will review those arrangements on a regular basis to ensure
that the arrangements meet the needs of the Company.

ROLES AND DUTIES OF CHAIRPERSON AND
GENERAL MANAGER

The chairperson and the general manager (equivalent to
chief executive officer) have different roles. The chairperson
is responsible for the operation of the Board and the general
managers are responsible for managing the operations
of the Group. Their functions have been clearly divided to
ensure a balanced distribution of power and no authority will
concentrate on a single individual.

Dr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, the chairperson of the Board, is
principally responsible for leading the Board and ensures
the Board to act in the best interests of the Company. The
chairperson ensures that the Board to operate effectively
and perform its proper duties and discuss all important
and proper matters in a timely manner. The chairperson
is responsible for convening Board meetings, consulting,
determining and approving the agenda of each Board
meeting, and ensuring that Directors are provided sufficient
information on current matters in a timely manner. The
chairperson oversees the structure, number of members
and composition of the Board and makes recommendations
to the Board and the relevant committees on any intended
changes. The chairperson is also responsible for ensuring
that the Company formulates good corporate governance
practice and procedure.

Dr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, the deputy executive
chairperson, an executive Director and a general
manager, is principally responsible for the daily operation
and management of the Group’s overall operations and
implementing the Board’s operating strategy and policy
and delegating tasks to all departments for implementation
so as to realise the Board’s objectives and decisions. In
addition, he is also responsible for the Group’s financial
reporting, internal control, material procurement and control,
logistics, customs, taxes and legal matters and compliance,
coordinating close cooperation among all departments,
uniting efforts of staff and encouraging the initiative of staff
so as to ensure smooth and effective operation of the
Company’s operations and systems.
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Mr. Wong, John Ying Man, an executive Director and a
general manager, is principally responsible for the daily
operation and management of the Group’s overall operations
and implementing the Board’s operating strategy and policy
and delegating tasks to all departments for implementation
so as to realise the Board’s objectives and decisions. In
addition, he is also responsible for research & development,
production, quality assurance and new product innovations,
coordinating close cooperation among all departments,
uniting efforts of staff and encouraging the initiative of staff
so as to ensure smooth and effective operation of the
Company’s operations and systems.

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing, an executive Director and a general
manager, is principally responsible for the daily operation
and management of the Group’s overall operations and
implementing the Board’s operating strategy and policy and
delegating tasks to all departments for implementation so as
to realise the Board’s objectives and decisions. In addition,
he is also responsible for supervising all personnel issues
at our Nansha production facilities, all capital equipments
installation and disposal, and overseeing all employee
champions programs to optimise costs and make sure our
facilities are in full compliance with local, international and
environment laws and standards.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing
the financial statements of the Group.

The finance department of the Company is managed by
a qualified staff and supervised by executive Director and
general manager, Dr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, who is
a U.S. certified public accountant. With the assistance
of the finance department, the Board will ensure that
the preparation of the financial statements of the Group
complies with relevant regulations and applicable accounting
standards.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services
(including review of interim financial information and tax
services) for the year ended 31 December 2020 provided
by RSM Hong Kong were approximately HK$650,000, and
HK$150,000 respectively.

The statement of reporting responsibility issued by RSM
Hong Kong, the auditor of the Company, in respect of
the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
independent auditor’s report on pages 45 to 53.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has maintained communication with its
shareholders through the annual general meeting or other
general meetings and encourages them to participate in
general meetings. Registered shareholders of the Company
receive notices of general meetings by post. The notice
of general meeting contains the agenda, the proposed
resolutions and the voting form. All shareholders of the
Company are entitled to attend the annual general meeting
and special general meetings of the Company. Shareholders
who are unable to attend the general meeting can fill in the
proxy form attached with the notice of general meeting and
return the same to the share registrar and transfer office of
the Company so as to appoint their representatives or the
chairperson of the meeting as their proxies.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

Right to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

Pursuant to Article 68 of the Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting shall be convened on
requisition as provided by the Companies Ordinance or
by the requisitionist. The Directors are required to call a
general meeting if the Company has received requests from
shareholders of the Company representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to
vote at general meetings.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. Al
enquiries can be in writing and sent for the attention of the
Board, in one of the following ways:

1. By Post Raymond Industrial Limited
Rooms 1801-1813, 18th floor,
Grandtech Centre,

8 On Ping Street,

Shatin, New Territories

Hong Kong

2. By facsimile  (852) 2341 8669

3. By email ril@rilnk.com
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Procedures to put forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholders who would like to put forward proposals at a
general meeting shall follow the procedures below.

Shareholders of the Company representing at least 2.5%
of the total voting rights of all the shareholders who have a
relevant right to vote or at least 50 shareholders who have a
relevant right to vote may request the Company to:

i) give notice of a resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at the annual
general meeting of the Company; or

ii) circulate a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution to be dealt with at a general meeting or
other business to be dealt with at the meeting;

to each shareholder of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the meeting.

A request to give notice of a resolution must be received by
the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks before the annual
general meeting to which the request relates; or (i) if later,
the time at which notice is given of that meeting. A request
to circulate shareholders’ statement must be received by
the Company at least 7 days before the meeting to which it
relates. Such request may be sent to the Company in hard
copy form or in electronic form.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Liu Pui Yee (“Ms. Liu”) was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 9 February 2018. Ms. Liu is
responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully appraised of
the relevant corporate governance developments relating to
the Group and facilitating the professional development of
the directors.

Ms. Liu has received no less than 15 hours relevant
professional training during FY 2020.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy. In proposing any
dividend payout, the Board shall take into account certain
factors, including but not limited to the Group’s expected
and actual financial performance, its retained earnings and
distributable reserves, the Group’s capacity from current
and future operation, future commitments at the time of
declaration of dividend.

The dividend policy and the payment of future dividend are
subject to the Board’s continuing determination which would
be in the best interests of the Group and Shareholders and
are in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.

44

IR S BUR

EFECRMARBER - EROTAREXNE  EFg
EERETHE @?ﬁ1ﬁ7\5ﬁﬁé$%ﬁ’ﬁﬁiﬂ;ﬁ&f@ﬁﬂ“
KRB EBHFRGENADIKFER  AEEE R LRKE
HIBET) » AR E M B B B B R HEIE

BEBREARKBENINABTESFENRERE &
KA RNEERBERORENS - WA AEEMEER
AR e

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. Annual Report 2020



Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Raymond Industrial Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 135,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“‘HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matters
we identified are:

Key Audit Matter

RREITER

BEETEH

MRES EREREBERMNFEAE - ERMAENBRELER
EMBRRNEFTTIREENTR - ZFFRERME &
EUBRIETERB M ERERFRE - RAYL
TR RIMERER - RPIEENBRBAFTERS

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMANES AR ERRETSE

46

1. Impairment of trade receivables

1. B 5 W ARFUR(E

FRHEECA R EHRAMNT 4R 17

Refer to notes 4(t) and 17 to the audited consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had significant trade
receivables of HK$294,926,000 (2019: HK$257,326,000).
No impairment has been recognised during the year.
R2020612 A31H - EEBAEKRE HRIRFEE
294,926,000 7T (2019 4F : # # 257,326,0007C ) = &
I EFERRE

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment on
provision for loss allowances on trade receivables included:
BMEEEERTEE S RUCR B ERERITHRE
FalE

° We understood, evaluated and tested, on a
sample basis, management’s key control over the
assessment on recoverability of trade receivable
balances and the related loss allowances, including
periodic review on trade receivables;
BAIAHEA R - B8 SHERARE  BRENE
SRR S e TR B 14 5T (4 AR B B B 1Y
FEER - BRETHRTEZEKEEN

o Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy of trade
receivables aging used by management to estimate
the appropriate provision for loss allowances;
A - EE IR BT A WER S ERA R
WM - DMEEHEE BRI
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

RRETEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZHMBE

BHRETSER@E

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ETFNTEEBRENSER

1. Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)
1. E S EWERTURE ()

Refer to notes 4(t) and 17 to the audited consolidated financial statements.

BRI ECA R EHRENL 4R 17

Management applied judgement in assessing the expected
credit losses. Trade receivables relating to customers with
known financial difficulties or significant doubt on collection
are assessed individually for provision for expected credit
losses. Expected credit losses are estimated by grouping
the remaining trade receivables based on shared credit risk
characteristics and collectively assessed for likelihood of
recovery, taking into account the nature of the customers,
their geographical locations and their ageing categories,
and applying expected credit losses rates to the respective
gross carrying amounts of the trade receivables. The
expected credit losses rates are determined based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience with an adjustment
to reflect current and forward-looking information
which affected the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.

EEELTHENEEEERERAE - B NG5
REXHWHEERRBNETFPEHNE S EKERRTY
HIEHEEEREEETER MG - HHEEBEIR
BHANEERREEENGNE S RKETETS
B WEEa IR R - RREEEFHME -
WIBA B REREEAR - URETEMEEEEXEANE
SHRVIESRE BNIREARE - BRHEEBEEXEE &
SENRELEEEBELCRET - WHETHAE - UREF
BRPEBRIEERENNE R RATE L ER -

As the assessment of expected credit losses involved
significant management judgement, we regard this as a key
audit matter.

BRIEEEEETEIREREEEHE - BIEE
RRARERTEIE -

° Obtained management’s assessment on the
expected credit losses allowances of trade
receivables and assessed the reasonableness of
the expected loss rates. We corroborated and
validated management’s assessment based on
the historical settlement pattern, correspondences
with the customers, and evidences from external
sources including the relevant public search results
relating to the financial circumstances of the relevant
customers;
NISEREHE S EURFEREEEBEEENT
it - WM TRHEEXNEBMN - RAVEENRZ
TEBENEL - DRBEELENRN - BEFH
s RN AORIFE R - BIEEMERE P M AR
SEBR AHERER

o We assessed management’s assessment of current
market conditions and forward-looking information
such as macroeconomic factors by comparing the
data used by management against publicly available
information; and
BMEREEBEANBIBEEARER - RETEHE
BEHE AT R T E R RB LB R ZR SRR
MEE R

° We checked the mathematical accuracy of
management’s calculations for loss allowances of
trade receivables.

BMeE T EREAERKIRIBE B EHNER
Mo

&

iy

FREEBRIR —T-ZFF

47



Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZHMBE

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

RRETEE

BHRETSER@E

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ETFNTEEBRENSER

48

2. Valuation of inventories

2. FEE

Refer to notes 4(e) and 16 to the audited consolidated financial statements.

BRI ECA R EHREN L 4e) K 16 -

The Group’s inventories were exposed to inventory
obsolete and excess risks as a result of the fast
technology innovation and macroeconomic challenges.
The determination of the provision amount is complex and
involves significant judgements and estimates because it
depends on the net realisable value of inventories.

BRI EIRTI R KRB L ERE - EXENEFEER
REFBRER - BESENETBEM  PREKRH
B R fhst - AAREEUANFE A #IRFE -

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s net inventories
amounted to HK$176,770,000. Inventory is carried in the
consolidated financial statements at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. The net realisable value of inventory
could be impacted by changes in economic conditions as
well as changes in customers’ preferences and competitor
strategies in responses to changes in market conditions.
R20206F12A31H ESENEFEFERBE
176,770,000 7T ° FE L4 & B 15 Hak 7 R A AR B ]
BFEBREEIIR - FENAIE R FAER e g XK H
RREEARE PR REFHFRETISHE
RS LT E o

QOur procedures in relation to management’s assessment
on net realisable value of inventories included:

B EREN AEER 2R FEMNTNEF 2L
o We understood and evaluated the appropriateness

and consistency of the basis management used
in estimating the level of provision for inventories
by comparing the historical accuracy of inventory
provisioning, on a sample basis, to the realised
amount; and reviewing the level of inventory write-
offs;

BfEBAMETR - ST FEREEER
TREMERYE - TRIFLEEEELRETER

HEKFRATERANERE - A REMTEMEKT
B E MR-
° Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy of

inventory aging used by management to estimate
the appropriate provision for slow-moving and
obsolete inventories;

DA - S EREERANTFERE UM
FEEHA BN 7 S 00 iE S BE e R

° Performed audit analytics on inventory holding and
movement data to identify products with indication
of slow-moving or obsolescence; and
HIHANTFENEBSEBETRT DN - U7
B HSBRIRNER &
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

RRETEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZHMBE

BHRETSER@E

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ETFNTEEBRENSER

2. Valuation of inventories (Continued)

2. FEME (&)

BRI ECA R EIHREN L 4e) K 16 -

Refer to notes 4(e) and 16 to the audited consolidated financial statements.

o Compared the carrying amounts of a sample of

inventories to their net realisable value through a
detailed review of sales subsequent to the year
end. Where there were no subsequent sales of
the respective products after the year end, we
challenged management as to the realisable value
of the products, corroborating explanations with
the aging, sales orders, historical margins and
marketability of the respective inventories, as
appropriate.

BRFATEFRENHEBR - LTS
FERMEEREERFEETHLR - HRE
FREABELNER  BMEMEEERZSE
EmmAEREERLER  WHEBKER  HE
RE - BAEEMNXREEFENTISAIHENR
(@A) s R -

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019, were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements on 26 March 2020.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The
Other Information comprises all of the information included
in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the Other Information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

FREBEARAR —T-_TFFR
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZHMBE

Other Information (Continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other
Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this Other Information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

50

HtE R (4)

ARAEEAMBRENBAMS - RANETRHMEL
XA H B AR - WA ZEHEMER TN LR E M5
BRARMEETBREPESH TREEERNTN—RHF
DBEEXRKRERL - WEERBRMATHTHIIE - RAR
REZEMEMFEERNRERL - AIRMEREZEE -
BT E AR AR E -

ESHRSUBERRNEMT

EXAERBEBFESHMASRMNEEM B REERR
FERNAHRDIRA G EMBRE - USHEEMBERERIEL
BEEMAFHRR  MEBERBUENNEES - SAE
RAMBHRETFEARNMGFRERMEBMNERNRER

it o

ERESAVBHRERE  EFEEEME EEEFEL
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

REMB S M BRBRROEE ()

AHEESARAEBRNESERAEL &G
AN -

HERCTARBELLGTEENEE M - R (ERA
MEMETER) EAFEEFFIGIRRR A 8
BHY BEREFBECERNELERREANEX
THEEMSLAER - MERMRAFEERNTHEE
1 AR EERBERETIRBIBEAMBERER
MR R BN (R EETR) B R MINER - &
PR ERENBE BN HRE A HMESNETE
e A AREHIMNTTEESR EKEEE

FERE -

FESAYBHMRNERI®R BELAT B
BEMGAMHERRECRERAFIHNT AR
BRT R 5 R FF

ERER BESEENEBREREINVBERN
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Yam Tak Fai, Ronald.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

(For the year ended 31 December 2020)
= A S 3L

,%'/]? (=] E i 155

(BZ 20204 12 431 HIFF/E)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
FaE BT T BT T
Revenue WA 5 1,289,515 1,155,578
Cost of sales SHER AR (1,099,136) (1,007,721)
Gross profit EX 190,379 147,857
Other revenue E bl A 6 2,116 4,208
Other net (loss)/income EAhF (E518) s 6 (4,097) 9,094
Selling expenses HEER (13,508) (15,010)
General and administrative expenses ~ — RN ITHE A (98,011) (104,239)
Profit before taxation BREE AT A 76,879 41,910
Income tax expense FriS sz 8 (13,661) (2,937)
Profit for the year RN TR REM
attributable to ARF EEF
shareholders
of the Company 9 63,218 38,973
Earnings per share FREF
Basic, HK cents B - A 12 12.78 7.89
Diluted, HK cents 5w B 12.74 7.84
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

(For the year ended 31 December 2020)

GeRaRkHME2ERER
(BZE 20204 12 5 31 HIFFE)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(B REN)
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit for the year attributable AN TR RIEAL
to shareholders of the Company  REEZR 63,218 38,973
Other comprehensive income Hih2mEas
ltem that may be 2B EFFEEN AR
reclassified to profit or loss: FIEE -
- Exchange differences on - MEIRHNE TS I TS
translation of financial EENERE5
statements of foreign
operations 15,713 (6,107)
Total comprehensive income ARATRRREERFEZ
for the year attributable 2HEHKRFHATE
to shareholders
of the Company 78,931 32,866

FREBEARAR —T-_TFFR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

(At 31 December 2020)

S e BRI R

(2020 12 A31 H#EZE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB REMN)

2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 BT T BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment YE - BB MEE 13 153,021 169,692
Right-of-use assets FREEE 13 8,833 8,973
Deferred tax assets FEFRTBE B 15 2,739 3,424
164,593 182,089
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 16 176,770 124,496
Trade and other receivables 5 REAMEWERR 17 325,561 278,452
Bank and cash balances RITRIREEA 18 291,894 255,198
794,225 658,146
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables 2 5 REMERIRR 19 297,897 229,428
Dividends payable FERTAR B, 286 282
Current tax liabilities BIHATR I B & 14 5,253 4,398
303,436 234,108
Net current assets REBEETFE 490,789 424,038
Total assets less current liabilities @EERABEE 655,382 606,127
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBRE 15 167 173
NET ASSETS EEFE 655,215 605,954
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAL#iE
Share capital &N 23(a) 462,333 462,333
Reserves E 192,882 143,621
TOTAL EQUITY iR 655,215 605,954

Approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2021 and

are signed on its behalf by:

Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
=EA
Director

EF

20213 A 25 AEEE AR -

Wong, Raymond Man Hin

BEXHE
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
(For the year ended 31 December 2020)

GERREBR
(BZE 20204 12 5 31 HIFFE)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(B REN)
PRC
Share  Exchange Capital Retained statutory Total
capital reserve reserve earnings reserve equity
A& ENRE B BREER TELERE CHE
(note 23(a)  (note 23(c)(i))  (note 23(c)(ii) (note 23(c)i))
(FrsE2s()  (H&E23(0)) (Bt 23(0)) (Fr3E 23(c)i)
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(i3 BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2019 R2019%1 A1 AEH 461,807 39,804 859 68,822 40,877 612,169
Changes in equity for 2019: 2019 228 .
Profit for the year RERRH - - - 38973 - 38973
Exchange differences on translation % 59M /BB
of financial statements of BREFNELESR
foreign operations - (6,107) - - - (6,107)
Total comprehensive income SRMEEE - (6,107) - 38,973 - 32,866
Appropriation to The People’s BT F#ERF
Republic of China
(“The PRC")
statutory reserve - - - (5,082 5,082 -
Dividends approved in respect of ~ BLRR &
— current year ¥ 23(0)() - - - (9,886) = (9,886)
— previous year -fiE 23(0)(i) - - - (29,652) - (29,652)
Shares issued under share B#7 RiERY
option scheme
— gross proceeds -Els 23(a)il 457 - - - - 457
~transfer fom capital reseve - HERRBEED 69 - 69) - - -
Share options lapsed BB - - (34) 34 . -
526 (6,107) (103) (5,613) 5,082 (6,215)
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 12 f 31 B4 462,333 33,697 756 63,209 45,959 605,954

FREBEARAR —T-_TFFR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(For the year ended 31 December 2020)

GEEREBEX
(B2 20204 12 A 31 HiFFE)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LBBREN)
PRC
Share  Exchange Capital Retained statutory Total
capital reserve reserve earnings reserve equity
RA& EiGE ERfifs BREER DEEERHE EHE o
(note 23(@))  (note 23(c)(i))  (note 23(c)i) (note 23c)(i)
(FisE2s(e)  (H&E23(c)) (B 23(0)) (FzE23(c)(i)
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i BT BT BT BT BETT AR
At 1 January 2020 202051 A1 A&& 462,333 33,697 756 63,209 45,959 605,954
Changes in equity for 2020: 20205 2 X%
Profit for the year TEERR - - - 63,218 - 63,218
Exchange differences on translation 83590 £ B0
of financial statements of RREERNELEE
foreign operations - 15,713 - - - 15,713
Total comprehensive income PENEES - 15,713 - 63,218 - 78,931
Appropriation to PRC statutory R EIATE R ERF
reserve - - - (1,693) 1,693 -
Dividends approved in respect of ~ BERR &
— current year B3 23(0)() - - - (9,890) - (9,890)
— previous year -fiF 23(0)(i) - - - (19,780) - (19,780)
- 15,713 - 31,855 1,693 49,261
At 31 December 2020 R2020%12 F 31 A& 462,333 49,410 756 95,064 47,652 655,215
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(For the year ended 31 December 2020)

GEATMER

(BZE 20204 12 5 31 HIFFE)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB HREN)
2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B EE BT T BT T
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING K& FHHREHRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation FRIERTR A 76,879 41,910
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 9 481 487
Depreciation of other property, Y - R RERETE
plant and equipment 9 32,700 33,959
Foreign exchange differences, net PE W FZETR 8,232 (2,065)
Bank interest income IRITHRBUA 6 (2,116) (4,208)
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of HEYE -« BEMEE
property, plant and equipment (&), BEFE 6 (157) 1,206
Obsolete moulds and toolings BRR A T B ¥R
written off 7,271 -
(Reversal of)/write-down of (E#) HEFEFE
inventories, net (2,365) 1,738
Operating profit before working BESSEFHAILEER
capital changes 120,925 73,027
(Increase)/decrease in inventories BFEOEM R (49,909) 44,761
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 R E A FEUER K
other receivables (Em) ,md (47,109) 11,379
Increase/(decrease) in trade and H 5 R EAMEIRR
other payables #hn, Crd) 68,469 (1,004)
Cash generated from operations REEE4ECHE 92,376 128,163
Tax paid: FRIEZ T -
Hong Kong Profits Tax (paid)/refunded &/& RS (XH) /R A (4,409) 1,565
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid PR EMSHYE H (8,057) (3,697)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax refunded Bl 2 AT{SE R D - 1,704
Net cash generated from RETHEECESFE
operating activities 79,910 127,735

MREEBRAR —T_TFFH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(For the year ended 31 December 2020)

HMERERER
(B2 2020 F 12 A 31 AL F/Z)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
P 5T BT T ST I
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING RETHZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, EEME -
plant and equipment B & (15,507) (27,780)
Proceeds from disposals of property, — HEWE - =
plant and equipment NETEES e 768 375
Interest received ISR ON 2,116 4,208
Net cash used in investing BREFBZTHZ
activities REFE (12,623) (23,197)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING REERZ
ACTIVITIES BERE
Proceeds from shares issued BITHERERD 2
under share option scheme e 23(a)(ii) - 457
Dividends paid SRR (29,666) (39,514)
Net cash used in financing REEETHZ
activities RE&FRE (29,666) (39,057)
NET INCREASE IN CASH ReRBEEEE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS H B 2B hFEE 37,621 65,481
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ®1A1BzES
AT 1 JANUARY FREEZEEBR 255,198 190,007
Effect of foreign exchange rate IMNEERBE 25
changes (925) (290)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MN12A31A2B &
AT 31 DECEMBER RESEEER 291,894 255,198
ANALYSIS OF CASH HReRBESEEEEIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRIA R 18 291,894 255,198
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

l. GENERAL INFORMATION

Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong. The address of
its registered office and principal place of business is Rooms
1801 — 1813, 18th Floor, Grandtech Centre, 8 On Ping
Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. The Company’s
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is sale of electrical
home appliance. The principal activities and other particulars
of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 28 to
the consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, Dr. Wong,
Wilson Kin Lae is the ultimate controlling party of the
Company.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements for year ended 31
December 2020 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“‘HKAS”); and Interpretations. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange and with the requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

MREEBRAR —T_TFFH

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABE®BEN)

. —RER
FIREEARAR(AQT ) NEBTMAST - AREM
PR N T B S ENE ST AP AL FE 8 EES
18121801 - 1813 F - AR RN R EBH AR SA
PRAa) ([BEARFT]) ER e

ARBZEIBEHRHERMES  EXBEXBKRENE
RAEIDIT B AR S B 5 MR M 7E 28 ©

AAREFRAEEFIELBEA TGRS -

2. REEE

HZE2020F 12 A1 B IEFEMNGEUEHREBIEART
LEMBRAR([AEH]) -

REEMBRERDBERT LML ((EFEBEHMA
EBEANMEEREEVM GRS EA(ERMBRSE
BRI MRS - BEMBREEREEBFBHEREER
([BRMBHEREL])  FESHEN(EFEEHER])
K2k - NMEAMBHRENTEMRIAES MRS
REBEGEXARBBRRGI(F622F) ETEER - K
SEFTFRMN T BSFTHEREENT

EAGMAGEEMETRAKREEN S HMERE
R A AR BT R MR 7] KB R B A M IS E 2R - K
SR AT R HERKEARBENERM I ZNE
AEFRREFENAGAPHRRT R - EHERH
PAPEES A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the Amendments to Reference to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of Material

Except as described below, the application of the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards and the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of
Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that
states “information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements,
which provide financial information about a specific reporting
entity.” The amendments also clarify that materiality depends
on the nature or magnitude of information, either individually
or in combination with other information, in the context of
the financial statements taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

(b)

The Group has not applied any new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2020. These new and
revised HKFRSs include the following which may be relevant
to the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to HKFRS 16
COVID-19 Related Rent
Concessions

1 June 2020

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

1 January 2021

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

1 January 2022

Amendments to HKAS 16
Property, plant and
equipment: proceeds
before intended use

1 January 2022

Amendments to HKAS 37
Onerous contracts — cost
of fulfilling a contract

1 January 2022

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018 — 2020 Cycle

1 January 2022

Amendments to HKAS 1
Classification of liabilities
as current or non-current

1 January 2023

FREBEARAR —T-_TFFR

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB REMN)

3. BRAFEIREBIEBYBREER (@)

C MR8 15 R AE R T RSB &R M

HER

(b)

AREBIWAREAN2020F1 A1 BHBNBMBREREDEM
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el MHER BB GRS E BN T A feEAEEE
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LA HEsk
Z1ERBRN g
AR
BRI ELERE 1657 20206 A1H
({B8ET4%) 2019 E AR S 9m
EEEE SR
BRI ELERIFE 95 - 20211 A1H
BB GEIERIZE 3957 -
BB RELERE 7R -
BB REERE A58
MBI ISHREERE 1657
CHEEE S5l
- FPEER
BB RS ZERISE 35% 20221 A1H
(ERTA) LS AE BRI
EFESTHERFE 165 (BT AN) 20221 A1H
YE - R N ERERE
WERBR 2 TS F0E
BB @RS 37 9 (BRI AN) 20221 818
EEEA Y - BITA R
BBV SR ELER 2018 F 2 20221 A1 H
2020 F A Hf /) G 2 2ok
BB SR (IBRTA) 20231 818
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgements in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgements or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 30.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(@) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that give it the
current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities
that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@) Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from
the date the control ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an

investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 4(s)).

(b)
(i)

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates when the fair values are determined.

MREEBRAR —T_TFFH

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABE®BEN)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(b) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(i) Transactions and balances in each entity’s

financial statements (Continued)

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are translated at
the exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of monetary items that form part of the net
investment in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation
is sold, such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than cost of construction in
progress described below). Property, plant and equipment
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any (see note
4(s)).

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives at the principal annual
rates as follows:

Buildings held for own use
which are situated on leasehold
land, where the fair value of
the building could be measured
separately from the fair value
of the leasehold land at the
inception of the lease
(see note 4(d))

4.0% — 4.5% straight line

Leasehold land is depreciated
over the unexpired term
of lease (see note 4(d))

2% straight line

Plant and machinery 9.0% - 18.0% straight line

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9.0% — 33.3% straight
line
Motor vehicles 25.0% reducing balance and

18.0% straight line
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GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABE®BEN)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)  Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

The cost of construction in progress includes the cost of
machinery, materials, construction expenditures and other
costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working
condition for its intended use. Construction in progress
is not depreciated until it is completed and ready for its
intended use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is
recognised in profit of loss.

(d) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.

The Group as a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, and any initial direct
costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change
in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate
lease. In this case the lease liability is remeasured based on
the revised lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term. Impairment losses are recognised in accordance
with accounting policy set out in note 4(s).

(e) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average basis.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

(f)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()  Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

(g) Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

(h)  Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is due.
If revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note
4().
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) in accordance with the policy set out in note
4(1).

Cash and cash equivalents

(i)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The

accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out below.

(k)

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(0

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(m)

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to
be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Trade and other payables

Equity instruments

Revenue and other income
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue and other income (Continued)
(i) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sales of electrical home appliances is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being
when the goods have been shipped to the wholesale’s
specific location (delivery). Following delivery, the wholesaler
has full discretion over the manner of distribution and price
to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility when on
selling the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and
loss in relation to the goods. A receivable is recognised by
the Group when the goods are delivered to the wholesaler
as this represents the point in time at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage
of time is required before payment is due.

(i) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For credit impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset.

(n)  Product development costs

Expenditure on development activities, whereby research
findings are applied to a plan or design for the production
of new or substantially improved products and processes,
is capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources
and the intention to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(o) Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions
to the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement
benefit scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of

those benefits, and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs and involves the payment of termination benefits.

MREEBRAR —T_TFFH

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABE®BEN)

4, FESTEBEG®)

(o) EEEF

() EEEERS
BEEENFERERMBRHEBRNEERZHE T IARER -
BEHmE HIREE B AR e R E LR FRERHR
BRI EE - B TAGHERE -

BEERZORBLEBRREEKERE T SHER -

(i) BAREHEE
REBRAARENFREHRFERKTEIHK - A RE KR
BHAENEFRIREENEAHENREE O LLFE -
BEmiIRRRARENFT BN A EARERNZFES
BB o

(i) BERBER
EAKETBEMEREHEZFEMNAENEEEREENX
AIHRZNEBARMNE B ARFEERE) - T RERR
BRARA o

75



76

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(P)

The Company operates a share option scheme under which
the Group receives services or goods from its directors,
employees and other eligible persons as consideration for
share options of the Company. The fair value of the services
or goods received in exchange for the grant of the share
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of
the share options, which is measured at grant date using
the Black Scholes model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the counterparties have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that the options
will vest.

Share-based payments

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the option is exercised which included in
the amount recognised in share capital for the shares issued
or the option expires (when it is released directly to retained
earnings).

()

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Government grants that become receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

(r)

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

Government grants (Continued)

Taxation

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint arrangements, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)  Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences relating to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of
the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)  Taxation (Continued)

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be used by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment,
the effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the
most likely amount or the expected value.

(s)  Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and
where an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets. If this is the case,
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal of the individual asset or the cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the asset / cash-generating unit. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset / cash-
generating unit whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated
first against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata
amongst the other assets of the cash-generating unit.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused
by changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to the
extent that they reverse the impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)  Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on trade
receivables and instruments that are measured at amortised
cost. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk
on the financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(®

Significant increase in credit risk

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future prospects of the industries in
which the Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic
expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies,
relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well
as consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s
core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

- significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

- an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) the financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(ii) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk when the asset has external credit rating of “investment
grade” in accordance with the globally understood definition
or if an external rating is not available, the asset has an
internal rating of “performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and there is no
past due amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over two
years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

84

4, FESTEBEG®)

v EREEREGE)
FEREEMEE

EHERMEENGEITARASREELETNZEN —IEK
ZHEFELER  Z2REENHREENE - EREE
HREERENERSEERA NS TR BRI

- FITARE F 7 HIRE R TSR EE -

- EREHNEQSEIEMF)

- BFINERARERUTFIUMBRHBNEELAS

HMRERHFHROERATE S1EZBNRE

- BFT AL ERNE S E M FER ¢ X

- CRMEERPBRBEMAEERETS -

MEEBUOR

B PIIEBS AR BRI EARERRT  AEHEW
RARME - FACARBBMF ARFHLEERSE) - K
SEEMETREE - NEZBR TEEEZEERLRE
AEBO W FEMIEN R EEA DX EHEES
HIR o AR WO e (A s A R e TR

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information as described above. As for the exposure
at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the
assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting
date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met,
the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL at the current reporting date, except for
assets for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

MREEBRAR —T_TFFH

GEMBRRME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)  Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

(v)  Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected
in the consolidated financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(VBB REMN)

5. REVENUE 5. WA
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by AN FERFZEREDREFELPEH WAL FHT -
major products for the year is as follows:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Revenue from contracts with REBVBREZERE 155
customers within the scope of HERREEFEHZWA
HKFRS 15
Disaggregated by major products BXEEMDE - EMHE
— sales of goods 1,289,515 1,155,578

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods at a
point in time in the following geographical regions:

REBRIA T EIRLERFEHEBEYRESKA

Manufacture and sale of
electrical home appliances

RABHEMNEEMNMEE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Primary geographical markets FEHETS
— The United States of America (‘USA”) - & 397,322 267,130
—The PRC — 775,804 740,413
— Japan - B 278,944 245,525
— Europe - BM 237,553 242 612
- Asia (excluding Japan and the PRC) - 2ol (RBiEH A& AFAE) 1,053,205 955,147
- Rest of the world =i 41,758 38,557
Segment revenue oERUA 2,784,586 2,489,384
Intersegment revenue WEB S B U A
- The PRC - (499,450) (437,273)
— Asia (excluding Japan and the PRC) - a5/l (VB3 B A AR ER) (995,621) (896,533)
(1,495,071) (1,333,806)
Revenue from external customers HINEF Z WA 1,289,515 1,155,578

MREEBRAR —T_TFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SE M RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(B AREN)
6. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET 6. HMWARZE(EE) WE
(LOSS)/INCOME
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Other revenue Hipug A
Bank interest income ERITH BHA 2,116 4,208
Other net (loss)/income HitF (558) W
Net gain on disposal of scrap materials &R 25558 853 819
Net exchange (loss)/gain EH (B8R WS F58 (6,491) 5,087
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of HEWE  BE&&BNE(EB18) 558
property, plant and equipment 157 (1,206)
Sample sales income EL e - 1,034
Subsidy income BN S 1,147 1,520
Sundry income H bz 237 1,840
(4,097) 9,094

7.  SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of electrical home appliances. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally to the
Group’s senior management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
identified six reportable segments on a geographical basis:
Japan, USA, the PRC, Europe, Asia (excluding Japan
and the PRC) and rest of the world. The electrical home
appliances are manufactured in the Group’s manufacturing
facilities located in the PRC. The “rest of the world” segment
covers sales of electrical home appliances to customers in
Australia, Canada, South America and Africa.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(@)

Segment profits or losses, assets and
liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the profits or losses, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and current
assets with the exception of tax balances. Segment liabilities
include trade and other payables, with the exception of
tax balances and dividends payable, attributable to the
manufacture and sales activities of the individual segments.
Segment non-current assets do not include deferred tax
assets.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments.
Segment profits or losses do not include other revenue and
other net income or loss, and the depreciation of assets not
attributable to those segments.

The measurement used for reporting segment profit is
“adjusted EBITDA” i.e. “adjusted earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortisation”. To arrive at adjusted
EBITDA, the Group’s earnings are further adjusted for items
not specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
other head office or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
adjusted EBITDA, management is provided with segment
information concerning inter-segment sales, interest income
and expense from cash balances managed directly by the
segments, depreciation and amortisation and additions to
non-current segment assets used by the segments in their
operations. Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to
prices charged to external parties for similar orders.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the year is set out below.
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GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABE®BEN)

7. oREER®

(@ 2EpERE BERERE
DEMENCREREBRSSBITRERASRTIENHE

BROBEDBERAKAZEN B2 ARE - sl
= $'§IZmJ"'ﬂﬁ(”ﬂ%/\é-\ﬁhzu"l—%%ﬁ*ﬂﬂ—]#&
EoMEhE 2B BENREE

DHEEBRMBANEEMRDEE  BETEERKEA
BE- - DHBEBEBNERN DS MNERENEE RSO
ENE S REMBMER - ETRIEER D FF RS 2 HE
BEKEMNBE - DEERBEETREELERAEE

K% F D BELN

WARSZHTI2EZFEDBEENHER
#B BREEMPATIFE

MX D REAREDE - DEFERT

% URTBRELS B EAEFE -

Eﬁ“*mﬂ%%%Zﬁ&%(Em%mmMJEN*#
FE - BiE - EREBEATZEARAT] - BERERAE
Eanm AREE 2w M R E Mﬂﬂﬂzﬁﬁ(mw%i
NENTBRA) (EHE— T H R -

BRIES BB FAZEBTDA Z D EE RN - ERE TN ERE
BEANEBHEE D WA - FERARBDE - T8 REH
EXRSEHTP 2 ERMENELEDB2IERBHHE
EZDEER - R IIEE 2 BRI ELINEE
(B o

A

AR T ARES S ETHERA B SR &R
SHBERRLERHIINTX -

89



90

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SENKRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB REN)

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

() Segment profits or losses, assets and

liabilities (Continued)

7.
(2)

Electrical home appliances

Y4

DEBER (®)

DEMEE BERAEB @)

FRER
Asia
(excluding Japan
USA The PRC Japan Europe and the PRC) Rest of the world Total
A 8 Bk B G (FafRARYE) i3] a

2020 019 2020 2019 2020 019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 019 2020 2019

HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS00D | HKS'000 | HKS000 | HKS'000 | HKS000 | HK$000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HK$'000 | HKS000

AETR | AETn | BMTR | TR | ABTR | AETr | ARTm | RETn | BMTn | EETn | BBTn | EETn | ATm | ARTn
Revenue from exteral customers S5V R ZUA 307322 | 267130 | 276354 | 303140 | 218944 | 245525 | 207583 | 242612 | 57584 | 98614 | 41798 | 38567 | 1,289,515 | 1,165,578
Inter segment revenue RN - - | 499450 | 437273 - - - - | o5 | 89653 - - | 1495071 | 1333806
Reportable segment revenue ~~ ERERREYRRL
recognised at a point in time THEABRA 307322 | 267130 | 775804 | 740413 | 278944 | 245525 | 231583 | 242612 | 1,083,205 | 965,147 | 41788 | 38557 | 2,784,586 | 2480384
Reportable segment profit TREATER
(adjusted EBITDA) (EHZEBITDA) 3452 | 145 | 24012 | 16541 24206 | 13307 | 20640 | 13238 | 86663 | 80889 3628 2103 | 198701 | 140745
Reportable seqment assets M2A3IEL
a5t 31 December TRESHER - - | 4313 | 392700 - - - - | 620863 | 525873 - - | 1,053,576 | 918573
Reportable segment fablies M2ASIRL
a5 31 Decrer THESTEE - - | o8 | (47125 - - - | s | (980 - - | womoegy | sy
Addions to non-curent KERERD
sementassetsdung teyer  AEEEM - - | 15506 | 2780 - - - - - - - - | 15506 | 2780
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABE®BEN)

7.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. SEER @
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) FAHRETHKA - B - BEREBEZHIRK

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
Revenue PN
Reportable segment revenue Al FRE SR A 2,784,586 2,489,384
Elimination of inter-segment revenue  AIEB5 SRUA I $5 (1,495,071) (1,333,806)
Consolidated revenue RAEUA 1,289,515 1,155,578
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT
Profit or loss B
Reportable segment profit ATRE D 20 A 193,701 140,745
Elimination of inter-segment profits B85 & e F 58 (81,660) (77,691)
Reportable segment profit derived from #AEBEINEFE ~

Group’s external customers Al 2R o 20 112,041 63,054
Other revenue and other net E A YA K EAth %

(loss)/income (E18) e (1,981) 13,302
Depreciation e (33,181) (34,446)
Consolidated profit before taxation RAEBRB AR 76,879 41,910

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AR E DI EE 1,053,576 918,573
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 75845 & i U B ZU K 3 (97,497) (81,762)
956,079 836,811
Deferred tax assets FEEFIBEE 2,739 3,424
Consolidated total assets AR EE 958,818 840,235
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SE M RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABEMREN)

7.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. oEER®E
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) THRETHWA - B - BEEREBEZHEK
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities (%)
(Continued)
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Liabilities af&
Reportable segment liabilities AHES AL (438,049) (345,174)
Elimination of inter-segment payables P30 % 30 FE{ BR ZK 85 140,152 115,746
(297,897) (229,428)
Dividends payable JERTAR B (286) (282)
Current tax liabilities BNEAT IR B fE (5,253) (4,398)
Deferred tax liabilities BER AR (167) (173)
Consolidated total liabilities REREE (303,603) (234,281)
(c) Revenue from major customers ) FEEFHKA
Revenue from major customers, each of whom amounted HREEEFABZWA @ BEFL D AMEAREE LU A10%

to 10% or more of the total revenue of the Group, is set out
below:

SPALE - FHIEAT

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

BT T ST T

Customer A BEA 315,712 314,640
Customer B ZFB 274,317 238,664
Customer C BFEC 265,442 198,079
Customer D ZFED 180,143 176,143
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GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABEREN)
8.  INCOMETAX EXPENSE 8. FiSBixH
(@) Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as (@) FrSIRE RS BRI T
follows:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T ST I
Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax ENHi%{1E - &858
Provision for the year (note 14) FNEHE (T 14) 4,744 2,343
Under/(over)-provision in respect of ~ BEFEERETR, (FBEEE)
prior years 362 (252)
5,106 2,091
Current tax - PRC Enterprise ENEARITE - PR EFTEH
Income Tax
Provision for the year (note 14) FREHE (MiFE14) 8,498 2,740
Over-provision in respect of prior years @1 & [E FRRE RS (728) (1,703)
7,770 1,037
Deferred tax ELEBE
Origination and reversal of temporary b= R/ E £ ME D
differences (note 15) (M¥5E15) 785 (191)
13,661 2,937
Note: BfaE -
0] Hong Kong Profits Tax (i) BBFIEH
Under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime, the first RIERBFIFEREGE  EEBRKLNEEREEER
HK$2,000,000 of profits of the qualifying group entity #) & P8 1 2,000,000 7T it 7 15 1% 8.25% K Bt R - i B
established in Hong Kong will be taxed at 8.25%, and profit REZHEERRFIZEIR 16.5% BB REFL o TRFE MALHIF
above that amount will be subject to the tax rate of 16.5%. ERESENEEERNGFASEEE 16.5% B R -
The profits of the group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered Profit Tax rate regime will continue to be taxed at a
rate of 16.5%.
(ii) PRC Enterprise Income Tax (ii) PRI MR

A subsidiary in the PRC was qualified as a high and new
technology enterprise and taxed at a preferential tax rate of
15% (2019: 15%).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SE M RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB REN)
8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 8.

(b) The reconciliation between the income tax expense  (b)
and the product of profit before tax multiplied by the
applicable tax rates is as follows:

B8 H @)

PS¢ B A B A% A N1 8 278 DA S8 P 5 o B9 R 78 2 TR 9

ORI -

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit before taxation FREERT R A 76,879 41,910
Notional tax on profit before taxation, ZAMtEEHAHRRAE
calculated at the rates applicable to MR AT & M B &R 1E
profits in the jurisdictions concerned 11,993 6,478
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A FBR 7 H 2 iS5 5/ 2 131 111
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEERTRMA 2 RIS 2 (1,014) (1,794)
Effect of temporary differences R ERRGHERCFE
not recognised 78 97
Over-provision in respect of prior years @ 1E 4 [E BEE R (366) (1,955)
PRC dividend withholding tax AR S TEIR R 2,839 -
Actual tax expense BERHEL 13,661 2,937
RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9. PROFIT FOR THEYEAR

The Group’s profit for the year is stated after charging/

(crediting) the following:

9.

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABE®BEN)

F A

AEBEARFEERMEFTA (R A THIA -

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST IT
Staff costs (including directors’ EIRK(EBEESEMHE (MEE10)
remuneration (note 10))
Salaries, wages and other benefits” Fe  TENREMEN" 212,426 206,333
Discretionary bonuses BRI TEAL 3,866 2,312
Contributions to defined contribution SR E#FIE RS 2 IEE
retirement plans 13,979 17,598
230,271 226,243
Other items HibigH
Cost of inventories sold (note 16) FEHEEKA (HE16)" 1,099,136 1,007,721
Write-down of inventories IREETT SR EE 442 1,827
Reversal of write-down of inventories 17 & # 54 B (2,807) (89)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 481 487
Depreciation of other property, Hthwz - BMERSBEITE
plant and equipment 32,700 33,959
Auditor’s remuneration ZEET N & 650 692
Product development costs* EmERAAS 44,555 40,844
Obsolete moulds and toolings BREA R T AR
written off 7,271 -

" For the year ended 31 December 2020, COVID-19 related  *
government grants amounted to HK$1,635,000 have been
offset against salaries, wages and other benefits.

# Cost of inventories includes approximately HK$207,968,000 #
(2019: HK$199,075,000) relating to staff costs and
depreciation, which amounts are also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above.

Cost of inventories also includes approximately
HK$7,271,000 (2019:HK$ Nil) relating to obsolete moulds

and toolings written off.

Product development costs include approximately

HK$24,942,000 (2019: HK$23,198,000) relating to staff
costs and depreciation, which amounts are also included in
the respective total amounts disclosed separately above.

MREEBRAR —T_TFFH

HZE2020F 12 A31 HILFE © H2019 MRS MAEEN
RS Bh A8 % 1,635,000 7T © BEHS - TEMEMETF
RIS o

GFERABIEE A RITE BB 207,968,000 7T (2019
£ B%190,075,0007T) * &R IMEIER LilERIHE
BEERESE -

FERANBIELBET 271,0007T (20194 « BEZT) -
R B IEA N TAER -

EmFAEKXABESME TR RITE 4B 24,942,000
7T (20194F : B 23,198,0007T) * :Z & EIMEIER ity
BEEBERADE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SENKRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(VBB REM)

0. BENEFITS AND

DIRECTORS

(@) The remuneration of every director is set

out below:

INTERESTS OF

10. ESZHRZMED

@ BUESHM=FIIMT

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services
as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REAREES (THRADARE AR RENHEREUHS

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Discretionary  Retirement
Directors’ in kind bonuses scheme
fees e ®1& contributions Total
e  RMREN  BMZEL  BRASEX A&t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT T BETT BT T
Year ended 31 December 2020 ZE2020%F12A 31 REELL
Executive directors YTES
Dr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae BRFEL(FE)

(Chairperson) 200 7 350 - 557
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man HRESE 170 3,964 400 240 4,774
Dr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin BEXERT 170 3,727 500 300 4,697
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing RRELE 150 1,980 280 162 2,572
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng BRI LA - - = = =
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit HRGERE 150 - - - 150
Independent non-executive BYFHTES

directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung* PR 82 - - - 82
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BOEEE 210 - - - 210
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming HRRTE 210 - - - 210
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BEELE 210 - - - 210
Ms. Ling, Imma Kit Sum* EZLT L 122 - - - 122
Alternate director RES
Mr. Zhang Yuankun SRS AE" - 65 - - 65

1,674 9,743 1,530 702 13,649
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABE®BEN)

10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(@) The remuneration of every director is set
out below: (Continued)

10. ESHAZNERE)

@ BUEENMESH|HIIWOT : (&)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services

as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REAEFEE (TRRADAISEFLAR) RENH S S ENE 2
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits  Discretionary Retirement
Directors’ inkind bonuses scheme
fees e i contributions Total
wE RERET  BRREL RARSER G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BETT BETT
Year ended 31 December 2019 E2019F 12 31 AFELE
Executive directors HES
Dr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae BRAEL(FE)

(Chairperson) 200 7 410 - 617
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man HRESE 170 3,964 400 240 4,774
Dr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin BEXEET 170 3,727 500 300 4,697
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing Rf@f At 150 1,980 270 162 2,562
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng BRI - - - - -
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit HRERE 150 - - - 150
Independent non-executive BUFHITES

directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung* PR 210 - - - 210
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BlLERAE 210 - - - 210
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming HRBEE 210 - - - 210
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BREERE 210 - - - 210
Alternate director REE
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun" SRS AE" - 180 - - 180

1,680 9,858 1,580 702 13,820

FREBEARAR —T-_TFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SE M RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

0. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS (Continued)

(@) The remuneration of every director is set
out below: (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
there was no amount paid or payable by the Group to the
directors or any of the highest paid individuals as set out
in note 11 below as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. Except
for the agreed waiver of director’s fee for the year ended
31 December 2019 and 2020 by Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng,
there was no other arrangement under which a director
has waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

* Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung resigned on 22 May 2020.
# Ms. Ling, Imma Kit Sum was appointed on 1 June 2020.
" Mr. Zhang, Yuankun resigned on 2 June 2020.

(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company and the
director’s connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.
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0. EENFZNER @)

@ BUEENMESH|HIIWOT : (&)

HZE2020F 12 A31H R2019F 12 A1 BILFE » K&
I 8 4 S B B A 28 S o DA N B R 11 Bt B0 {8 B 5% = B B
ATEBMAREBERFESINA RS B BERFE -
KREEFIE AR B PEE 2019F 12 A 31 H X 20204F 12
A31THLEFENESHEIN  WEEMZTEHIRRHRE
HEEHZ2020F 12 A31 H E2019F 12 A1 HIEFEY
ERF -

* PR SR AR 2020 55 5 B 22 HEHT »
# BT 20206 A1 BEE -

. SRTISE A A 20205 6 A 2 HEHT -

b) EBEXRS X RFISEPTHEAFZE

REFRFERETAER - BEAERNQR BTN ZAEE
EHNRARTEEREFRESBEA N (TREK LM
BIBEZERRS » ZHRENH—FHOEMRER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included three (2019: three) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented in note 10. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2019: two) individuals are
set out below:

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABE®BEN)

. {ERZRSEHFMAL
AEBSEEMATHEIEIC (201946  3f1) &S -
WEZMEDHRME10 B T2 (2019F : 261 B S
FAL ML DITT :

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

Salaries and other emoluments e R E b B 1,347 1,335
Discretionary bonuses BB AEAL 260 225
Retirement scheme contributions RIRE R 186 181
1,793 1,741

The emoluments of the other two (2019: two) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

BRI F A T 212 (20194F : 2L) & ERIDTAT -

Number of individuals

A
2020 2019
HK$Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 A EEZ T 2 8% 1,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 8% 1,000,001 JTTE 7B 1,500,000 7T 1 1
FMREBEEBARAT —ZT_TFEFHR
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Notes to the Consolidated Fina
SENKRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB REMN)
2.  EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the
Company of HK$63,218,000 (2019: HK$38,973,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
494,500,000 (2019: 494,195,000) shares in issue during the
year. The weighted average number of ordinary shares is
calculated as follows:

Basic earnings per share

ncial Statements

BREF
BREXREF

12.
(2)

SHEEREKR B TR AR A B R FE A FE SRS
63,218,000 7T (2019 4F : ¥ 38,973,000 7T) KIBEF AN 2
2317 INAE 19 A% #494,500,000 (2019 4F : 494,195,000)
L@ o TR INETFHERETE AN T ¢

2020 2019
’000 000
T Fi%
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 71 A1 BEZT 2 EB 494,500 493,815
Effect of share options exercised TR BB A 2 5228 (B =E 23(a)(i))
(note 23(a)(ii) - 380
Weighted average number of 12 A 31 Bz Bk hniE TR e
ordinary shares at 31 December 494,500 494,195
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BRBEEFN

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the
Company of HK$63,218,000 (2019: HK$38,973,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
496,278,000 (2019: 497,067,000) shares (diluted). The
weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) is
calculated as follows:

ESREERTFRUARGREEMGEAFE RN BE
63,218,000 7T (2019 4F : /& # 38,793,000 7T ) K N F 3%
£1496,278,000 (20194 : 497,067,000) (¥8 ) L@ - &
AN IS (B8 5 E AT -

2020 2019
’000 ‘000
T8 T
Weighted average number of ordinary 7212 A 31 B 2 &R 2 hi# AR E
shares at 31 December 494,500 494,195
Effect of deemed issue of shares BB R B ERETESIATRE
under the Company’s share option RIEETTIRG 2 & (M15E22)
scheme for nil consideration (note 22) 1,778 2,872
Weighted average number of ordinary 712 A 31 B 2 itz
shares (diluted) at 31 December Dk IS () 496,278 497,067
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABE®BEN)

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥¥  BMEMRXEREAEEE
AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Buildings Furniture,
held for fixtures and
Construction ~ ownuse  Plantand  equipment Motor Right-of-use
inprogress  ¥%&HA  machinery B3 vehicles  Sub-total assets Total

EEIR  2REN HEREE KEREG AE Mt ERREE it
HKG000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKEO0O  HKEO000
ARTT  ABTL BRI ARTn  BETn  ARTn  BETR ARTx

Cost BRA

At 1 January 2019 R2019E1 B 1H 6984 179626 213832 200,513 1453 615491 206206 636,117
Exchange adjustments Jofibitd (197) (3241) (3,344) (4,708) (170 (11,660 (329) (11,989)
Additions #1 20,267 - 2,651 4,800 62 27780 - 27780
Transfers &y (17,444 - 1585 15,859 - - - -
Disposals e - - (2,499) (12,418) (705) (15,622) - (15,622)
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12 A31 8 9610 176385 212225 204,046 13,723 615989 20297 636,286
At 1 January 2020 R2020E1 A1 9610 176385 212225 204,046 13,723 615989 20297 636,286
Exchange adjustments Jofbel 295 8,731 8,932 9,486 457 27,901 888 28789
Additions #m 9,004 - 990 4,301 299 15,507 - 15,507
Transfers &y (14,562) - - 14,562 - - - -
Disposals HE /% - @) (2,666 (75,460 (261)  (78,401) - (78.401)
At 31 Decernber 2020 12020412 A31 B 5,247 185,108 219,481 156,949 14,211 580,996 21185 602,181

Accumulated depreciation ZIHRHRITE

At 1 January 2019 #2019%1A1H - 152387 161463 111467 9094 434411 11031 445442
Exchange adjustments RpRE - (2,753) (2.290) 2,852) (137) (8.032) (194) (8,226)
Charge for the year TEENE - 2,145 7,073 22,489 1352 33,959 487 34,446
Disposals e - - o) (11,172 (625)  (14,041) - (14,041)
At 31 December 2019 2019512831 - 1B779 164902 119932 0684 446207 11324 457,621
At 1 January 2020 #2020%1A1H - 51779 164902 119932 0684 446,207 11324 457,621
Exchange adjustments s - 7,508 6,502 5,103 384 19,497 547 20,044
Charge for the year TEEHE - 2,101 6,897 22,607 1,095 32,700 481 33,181
Disposals HE/BE - @) (2391 (67,885) (35 (70519 - (70,519)
At 31 December 2020 R2020F 12 £ 31 B - 161380 175910 79,757 1098 427975 12352 440327
Net carrying value REFE

At 31 December 2020 2020612 B 31 B 5,247 23,728 43,571 77,192 3283 153021 8833 161,854
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 12 31 B 9,610 24,606 47,323 84,114 4039 169,692 8973 178,665

FREBEARAR —T-_TFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SE M RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABEMREN)

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Right-of-use assets represent leasehold land under medium-
term leases. The Group owns several industrial and office
buildings where its manufacturing facilities are primarily
located and office premises. The Group is the registered
owner of these property interests, including the underlying
leasehold lands. The leasehold land components of these
owned properties are presented separately only if the
payments made can be allocated reliably.

13. Y% BERRERFEAEEE®)

EREEERTHEE THEED - AEEHALET
EMPARE - HEEREEZLURNZHAKENBRERS
Fre ARBAZEMEERZ (RRARBEL) WEME
BA - BEMXNHOFIRRAR EDRR  ELBBEME
MEET Y T EBE -

The analysis of carrying value of properties is as follows: YZEREFESTOT ¢
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Medium-term leases FHIEE
—in Hong Kong -&E 4,503 5,394
— outside Hong Kong - BABLAIN 28,058 28,185
32,561 33,579
Representing: #EPK -
Buildings held for own use BIEE REEY 23,728 24,606
Right-of-use assets FREEE 8,833 8,973
32,561 33,579
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB HREN)
4. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 4. R&GEBERTROFTEHR
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Current taxation in the consolidated statement of RE ISR R Z BNERFR 1SR -
financial position represents:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T ST T
Provision for the year (note 8(a)) NEFERAE (M 8(e)
- Hong Kong Profits Tax -BEEH 4,744 2,343
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax - B {ERER 8,498 2,740
13,242 5,083
Provisional tax paid FERBZ
- Hong Kong Profits Tax -BBFEH (2,343) (758)
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax - EPEMERH (5,974) -
(8,317) (758)
4,925 4,325
Balance of income tax BEFESHBESERS
relating to prior years 328 73
5,253 4,398
Represented by: 2751
Tax recoverable AR B RN - -
Tax payable JERTRE R (5,253) (4,398)
(5,253) (4,398)
FIREEBRAT —T - ZFFR 103



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SE M RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

5. DEFERRED TAX

Analysis of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

15. IRIEFIIE
EEHIBEAERBEDTNOT -

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

Deferred tax assets EETHIRE = 2,739 3,424

Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBEE (167) (173)
2,572 3,251

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the year are as follows:

AEFRGEABBRARPCRRZ BEHEEE /(B
) AR R A B2 HEWT -

Depreciation

allowances
in excess of
the related Other
depreciation temporary
Tax losses  GIHTEEKX differences Total
HIEEE REBRIE HtET=EE &5t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT ST
Deferred tax arising from: JEEF B 2 E4H :
At 1 January 2019 M2019%1 HA1H 55 (124) 3,184 3,115
Exchange adjustments Bokb ok ol -7 - - (55) (55)
(Charged)/credited to profit (¥ ) /3t AfEE 2
or loss (note 8(a)): (P 5% 8(a)) (34) ®) 231 191
At 31 December 2019 MR2019F 12 A31H 21 (130) 3,360 3,251
At January 2020 R 2020F1 A1H 21 (130) 3,360 3,251
Exchange adjustments HmEe) o2 - - 106 106
Charged to profit or loss (k) EHE
(note 8(a): (i3 8(a)) 1) @®) (756) (785)
At 31 December 2020 202012 A31 H - (138) 2,710 2,572

At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$NIil (2019: HK$110,000).

RIERR  AEBAHAREEREABEZT (2019
£ BE110,0007T) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AR REN)
16.  INVENTORIES 6. =FE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Raw materials JRAT 87,462 62,298
Work in progress A 22,451 19,445
Finished goods EERK & 66,857 42,753
176,770 124,496
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an FESEZDMEERAERANAT ¢
expense is as follows:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Carrying amount of inventories sold FEIHERMAE 1,101,501 1,005,983
Write-down of inventories FERE 442 1,827
Reversal of write-down of inventories 17 & & [0 (2,807) (89)
1,099,136 1,007,721

During the year, certain aged inventories were sold, and
as a result, a reversal of write-down of inventories of
HK$2,807,000 (2019: HK$89,000) has been recognised and
included in cost of inventories sold.

FREBEARAR —T-_TFFR

RER ETREFEEEL At EERERDER
2,807,0007T (2019 4F : ## 89,000 7T ) B R T 5T AFE A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SENKRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(B AEN)
7. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. BEFRHEAMBYIRK
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Trade receivables E 5 R K 204,926 257,326
Other receivables H IR 5K 21,230 15,286
Deposits and prepayments EEASERE SN 9,405 5,840
325,561 278,452
(@)  Ageing analysis @ RRERDT
The ageing analysis of trade receivables as of the end of the ~ RIREHIRE FREMIRFIREZ A ZRE2TAT -
reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within 1 month 1{EAR 85,285 91,749
More than 1 month @im 1 E AR 3EA
but less than 3 months 157,284 117,144
More than 3 months BiE3EARLR12M@A
but less than 12 months 52,208 48,366
Over 12 months HBiE 12 & A 149 67
294,926 257,326

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on ~ ANEBHEZS E’\J%ﬂ%ﬂ%%ﬂi%%%gﬁgﬁé cfEEHEIAE
credit. The credit term generally ranged from 30 to 120  &30ZE 120K » NEE 2 EEHEFHNMIFE25(0)

days. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out
in note 25(a).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABEREN)
7. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. BEZRHMEWERR(®)
(Continued)
(b)  Trade receivables that are not impaired (b) RERMEZERKRR
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither 2B ERMENE FEBERR 2R ITAT -
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Neither past due nor impaired RAEBHSURE 256,247 232,079
Within 1 month past due BHER DR 1 A 34,355 16,969
More than 1 month wHAREA 1 B AE DR SE A
but less than 3 months past due 4,324 4,310
More than 3 months mAEAIEAE IR 12(8A
but less than 12 months past due - 3,901
Over 12 months past due BEAERE 1218 A - 67
Amounts past due BIHA R 38,679 25,247
294,926 257,326

(c)  Currency analysis

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

()

BN

REEEEE ZUARKHOBREEEA N IIEREHE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

United States Dollars (‘US$”) =T 218,468 187,506
British Pounds (“GBP”) HeE 9,406 2,514
Renminbi (‘RMB”) AR 67,052 67,306
Total =Xl 294,926 257,326

FREBEARAR —T-_TFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SE M RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABEMREN)

18. BANKAND CASH BALANCES

18. MITRRTLEEHR

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T ST I

Time deposits with maturity 3B A AEEARYE BATF X
within 3 months 206,728 196,870
Cash at bank and in hand RITFEANR S 85,166 58,328
291,894 255,198

As at 31 December 2020, the bank and cash balances of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$2,575,000
(2019: HK$8,265,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

9. TRADEAND OTHER PAYABLES

R2020F 12 A31 H » AEENUAREHENRITRES
4ERR BB 2 575,000 7T (20194 : 78#8,265,0007T) © A
R 5 i A NS T8 <7 R Bl A HMNE B IR IR ) FICAETE - 35

EMAREERGD) -

19. BZREMEMSKRR

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Trade payables (note a) 2 ZEMBRR (HiEa) 241,092 180,084
Accrued charges and other payables  JE{~ & i K HAb FERTBR X 56,805 49,344
297,897 229,428

The above balances are expected to be settled within one
year.

VA _EFRIRFERR A FAAT o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABEREN)
19. TRADEAND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)  19. B ZRHAEMERR (@)
Note: BfaE -
(@) The ageing analysis of trade payables as of the end of the  (a) RBERREE BB REMNERIREZAMZRETN
reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows: T~
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Within 1 month 1EAR 86,297 174,823
More than 1 month but less BE1EAELRIEA
than 3 months 145,673 2,686
More than 3 months but less B3 EAELK12{8A
than 12 months 7,602 2,449
Over 12 months HBid121E A 1,520 126
241,092 180,084
(b) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are  (b) AEEE FEMNEROEEEBEN TIEEE :

denominated in the following currencies:

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T
HK$ i 30,828 19,224
Us$ ET 62,498 53,376
Euro BT 403 1,024
RMB AR 147,363 106,460
Total =X18 241,092 180,084

FREBEARAR —T-_TFFR

109



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

20. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT
PLANS

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance (the “Ordinance”). The scheme
is defined contribution retirement plan administered by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately upon the
completion of service in the relevant service period.

At 31 December 2020, certain employees of the Group had
completed the required number of years of service under
the Ordinance and are eligible for long service payments on
termination of their employment. The Group is only liable
to make such payments when the termination meets the
required circumstances specified in the Ordinance and the
employees’ entitlement is not covered by the aforesaid
provident funds. At 31 December 2020, the Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme and the accrued interest
thereon exceeded the potential liabilities should the required
circumstances specified in the Ordinance be met.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes covering its full-
time PRC employees. The schemes are administered by
the relevant government authorities in the PRC. The Group
and the PRC employees are required to make contributions
based on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs
as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC and the
relevant government authorities undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group’s subsidiary in the PRC.

21.  BANKING FACILITIES

At 31 December 2020, the Group had unsecured revolving
banking facilities of HK$68,360,000 (2019:HK$68,350,000).
The banking facilities include documentary letters of credit,
trust receipt, bill payables, trade loans, trade guarantee and
corporate credit card. The amount utilised by the Group at
31 December 2020 under these facilities was HK$54,000
(2019:HK$211,000).
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20. REMHRFEMAKEE

AEEREBRTUELABFAEEIARETERMERK
(T&B ) PIBLEREMRE 2 BB REREBRHIELE RS
F(MaEEstd))  ZRESAHBULETESEE -
REBERESTE ARELEERHASAREEEEH
& 5% ARERF I - FE LRAEAE30,0007T ©
P kiR RIS SR R HAR S AR B

fE2020F 12 H31H » AKEWEHE TARBEFHD =
ZIEPINRTE  CHERHSERUZERERES - A
MEMIEFIIEEZBRET  AEBAN 28R ELRZET
ABZRRETEZNERBRBCHER - EAMETE
BEIEG) 2 B TRERS - ANEBTE2020F 12 A1 AERES
FTEIRRTF 2 FIBEZIMERIRE 2B AE -

AEBEETENOHNERRSEATHEEAZBBETRIR
REKETE - WA BIXP BB ARBESFIEE - AEBX
BTRRUAIRESREBHF S —EBADLLELH
R MEBBTAGRAEASBEETBENMNBARZER
BEARIERE T ZRIRBHNEE -

2. BITEEEE

f£2020F 12 A31 B - AEBRRTES 2 EAEEKBEER
%8 JE #) 5 75 #68,360,000 7T (20194 : /% # 68,350,000
JL) c RITZEEEEUNRARERIT - EalE - BEE
B BSEFRRBESER -ANBEREEREENAEE
54,0007T (2019 4F : /¥ 211,000 7T) °
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22.  SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme which was
adopted on 6 June 2003 for the purpose to give eligible
participants incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Group (Refer to the Report of
the Directors in the Annual Report for the details of the share
option scheme).

(a) Details of the movements of the Company’s
outstanding share options, which have no specific
vesting conditions, held by directors, employees and
other eligible participants during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABE®BEN)

22. URGAEBNIGTRS
DRSS ERESE

KA REE— AR 2003456 5 6 H R EEARETE - 1t
FrEE EIRERE N REEL B TR AKBIEL B
FleaBER2EE (@S B20TFRPESSREF
FEARRERTE) -

(@) EZE2019FM2020F 12831 BILFE &% B
BERHEMEERLEEFENARRSERTHEB
{EHERRITEBRENSEEFSOT

Number of share options
BREHE
Total share
options
granted
at initial date
and existed at
31 December
2020
R¥%AE  Outstanding Outstanding at
Rk at January 31 December
R 2020 2020 Exercised Lapsed 2020
Type of Date of Exercisable Exercise 12A81H #2020 during the during the 2020
participates grant period price it 1818 year year 12A31A
SMEER RitiAH qiTREH %E BRERE K RERTE REREH RRE
HKS
%
Directors 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.69 17,900,000 7,200,000 - - 7,200,000
S 20126 7A20R 19 July 2022
01272082
20227 A 190
Employees 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.69 24,380,000 950,000 - - 950,000
E& 2012 7A20R 19 July 2022
201247 A208%
202267A19A
42,280,000 8,150,000 - - 8,150,000

FIREXAERAR —T_TFFH
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ey

I RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABEMREN)

22.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

22. URGAEBNINARS @)
DESEENERERE (8

(a) Details of the movements of the Company’s (a) EZE2019FF2020F 12 A1 HIEFE - EE ' B
outstanding share options, which have no specific BEREMEERSEERBNARRLSERERB
vesting conditions, held by directors, employees and RHRRITEBRENEBFBENT - (B)
other eligible participants during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 are as follows: (Continued)

Number of share options
BREHE

Total share
options
granted
at initial date
and existed at
31 December
2019

AEAM  Outstanding Qutstanding at

Rk at January 31 December

1R 2019F 2019 Exercised Lapsed 2019

Type of Date of Exercisable Exercise 12A31R R20195F during the during the 2019%

participates grant period price le2io) 1A18 year year 12A31H

2EER BHAH A 1t BERE X1E RERGE REREE RETHE
HKS
Yt
Directors 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 063 - 300,000 - (300,000) -
5 October 2019
2 200910 A6 H 200910 86EZE
2019%10A5H
20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.69 17,900,000 7,200,000 - - 7,200,000
19 July 2022
20127 R 20H 2012F7A208%
2022 7R 198
Employees 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.63 - 260,000 (260,000) - -
5 October 2019
&8 200910 A6 H 200910 86EZ
2019%10A5H
20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.69 24,380,000 1,375,000 (425,000) - 950,000
19 July 2022
20127 R 20H 201267A208%
2022 7R 198
42,280,000 9,135,000 (685,000) (300,000) 8,150,000
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GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REN)
22.  SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 22. URGBAEBOZNRS (@)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) DRSEENBRETS (8)
(b)  The number and weighted average exercise prices of (b))  FEREZ BERMEFIITFEEOT
share options are as follows:
2020 2019
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
InREE BB NG R
TEE ZHE BB ZHE
HK$ ’000 HK$ ‘000
ik TR Vot TR
Outstanding at the FHIRITE
beginning of the year 0.6900 8,150,000 0.6863 9,135,000
Exercised during the year ~ ANF[E17f# - - 0.6672 (685,000)
Lapsed during the year REF - - - (300,000)
Outstanding at the end RERIERITE
of the year 0.6900 8,150,000 0.6900 8,150,000
Exercisable at the end EEEAIATE
of the year 0.6900 8,150,000 0.6900 8,150,000

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year ended 31 December
2019 was HK$1.11.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2020 had an
exercise price of HK$0.69 (2019: HK$0.69) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 1.55 years (2019: 2.55
years).

No options were exercised during the year ended 31
December 2020.

FREBEARAR —T-_TFFR

HZE2019F 12 A1 BILFE » TEBERERTTEHZM
BEYREREE111T -

R 2020F 12 A 31 BARITFEERAE 21T E A 0.600 7T
(20194 : B 0.6907T) R INEF 8 T L FHZ1.55
F (20194 : 2554 ) ©

HZE2020F 12 A1 HILFE » RBETTFEERHE -

113



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

22. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of
share options are as follows: (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, share options
of 685,000 were exercised and resulted in 685,000 ordinary
shares being issued with proceeds of approximately
HK$457,000. The related weighted average price at the time
of exercise was HK$1.11. 300,000 share options with unit
value of HK$0.11295 lapsed by reason of expiration of the
share option scheme. The total value of the share options
lapsed of approximately HK$34,000 was transferred to
retained earnings during the year ended 31 December 2019.

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on Black-Scholes
pricing model. The fair value measurement is categorised
within level 3. The contractual life of the share option is used
as an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise
are incorporated into the Black-Scholes pricing model.

22. URGAEBNINARS @)
DESEENERERE (8

(b) BEREZBERIMEFHTEENT - (B)

HZE2019F 12 A31 HIEFE + B17{#685,000 IR -
B E%17685,000 (% AL o 4078 M 457,000 7T © 1T{EEFAY
FEREMETLHBRABEI 11T - BE2019F12 A31 A
IEFE - AR SEIE) A5 + 300,000 I% B AR 4 B 2K 3K
HEMBEBE0.112057T - B RN B ELEL B
34,000 LA 2019F 12 A 31 HEHEZERFAF)

(0 BEgEzZAFERER

IR LB M X 2 RIS 2 X FETDZE MR L ERE
’Dﬂzfﬁﬁﬁﬁ% Fﬁi‘?tljﬁ%ﬁﬁ%21$§+ﬁ$1ﬁﬁﬁiéﬂiiﬁ
& - ATEUDESFE - BREZEHNFHIERILIA
EAZBAR - ?EEH&E@@DTE%E@%%T%V

Date of grant
®FHH

6 October 2009 20 July 2012
20091086 H 201267 H20H

Fair value at measurement date REtE B8z AF¥E HK$0.11295 HK$0.0929
Share price f&E HK$0.61000 HK$0.6900
Exercise price 1IEE HK$0.63000 FIK$0.6900
Expected volatility (expressed TEEDR IR (AEEHER

as weighted average volatility I8 T ERFEFT R IntE

used in the modelling under FHRRRT)

the Black-Scholes pricing model) 44.579% 33.073%
Option life (expressed as weighted FEARE A (AZEEHER

average life used in the modelling I8 T a%EFT R hntE

under the Black-Scholes pricing model) iR IERR) 3 years 3 years
Expected dividends TEHARR B 8.20% 6.687%
Risk-free interest rate (based on 3-year [E R FE (% 3F

Hong Kong Fund Exchange Notes) INERESES) 0.931% 0.182%
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22.  SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(Continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available information.
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate.

There were no market conditions associated with the share
option grants.

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABE®BEN)

22. URGAEBNINARS @)
DESEENERERE (8

(0 BREZAFERBRRGE)

TEHR MR T 1R B R MR (1R 8 M 2 0 P19 AT
B)HE - UBBRBEARASERENBRZIENEAES
EL AR - BHRENIRBEZREAE - TBARKRIA
BZEBAHAFE(AFEREATE

R 2 B ST ISR I R o

23. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 23. ¥EX - #FERRKRE
DIVIDENDS
(@) Share capital @ BE
(i) Issued share capital (i) BRITRA
2020 2019
Amount Amount
Number of ot L Number of |
shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
REHE BET T ferEgiE ST I
Ordinary shares, issued EER @ SRITRHE :
and fully paid:
At 1 January »1A1H 494,499,860 462,333 493,814,860 461,807
Shares issued under share 2517 2 BAXHEAR (D
option scheme - - 685,000 526
At 31 December M®12 A31H 494,499,860 462,333 494,499,860 462,333

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual
assets.

FREBEARAR —T-_TFFR

EARTAABEINRERMEROERSE - XERNAE
Bez LRER-—FERERR - A T BEREREE R R
BEHMARFHAL -

115



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SE M RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

23. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(@)  Share capital (Continued)
(i) Shares issued under share option scheme

No option were exercised during the year ended 31
December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, options were
exercised to subscribe for 685,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at a total cash consideration of HK$457,000.

(iii) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share
options at the end of the reporting period

23. EBEX - - REERRE @)

(@ BAERE)
(i) BRERTZRE

HZE2020F 12 A31 BHFE LI RETTFERHRE -

HZE2019F12 A31 HFE |F - 27715 B I 685,000 %
NaEEBR - BRERBE 457,0007T °

(i) RBEMRREE B 2R HRRITENBRE

Number of share options

. . . . BE
Exercise period Exercise price
1TES TEE 2020 2019
20 July 2012 to 19 July 2022 HK$0.690
20127 A208ZE2022F7 4198 75#50.690 7T 8,150,000 8,150,000

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company. Further details of these options are
set out in note 22.
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mEMBRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB HREN)
23. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 23. ¥& - #ERERE @)
DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(b) Dividends by KE
(i) Dividends payable to shareholders of the (i) REEFERMARBEADTRREN
Company attributable to the year
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T ST
Interim dividend declared and B S KR 2 A
paid of 2 HK cents per f& 8 AT EBAREE 210
ordinary share (20194 : HFREE BB 24L)
(2019: 2 HK cents per
ordinary share) 9,890 9,886
Final dividend proposed after the RARRE BRE ERE 2 R
end of the reporting period of I& 8 AT EBAREE 410
4 HK cents per ordinary share (20194 : HFRRE BB 40L)
(2019: 4 HK cents per
ordinary share) 19,780 19,780
Special dividend proposed after the AR iR B EZE 255
end of the reporting period of 1B AR mAELE 210
2 HK cents per ordinary share (20194 : FRREBIBEZ(L)
(2019: nil cents per
ordinary share) 9,890 —
39,560 29,666

The final and special dividends proposed after the end of the ARG HIRE EZ T MHIRE 2 RER B RFRIRBNA
reporting period have not been recognised as liabilities at the W& EARKERAALE ©
end of the reporting period.

FREBEARAR —T-_TFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SENKRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

23. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 23. ¥X - #EERE &)
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(b) Dividends (Continued) (b) KREE)
(i) Dividends payable to shareholders of the (i) REZFEEMREEAATGRIRECRELRFE

Company attributable to the previous financial eitER I
year, approved and paid during the year

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Final dividend in respect of the BEFERPSEAFELHAERINA
previous financial year, approved FREE RS 440
and paid during the year, of (20194 : HFRRE BB 400)
4 HK cents per ordinary share
(2019: 4 HK cents per
ordinary share) 19,780 19,768
Special dividend in respect of the BAEFERIRBERFESIERT
previous financial year, approved BERE RS
and paid during the year, of (20194 : GREBAIEE 211)
nil cents per ordinary share
(2019: 2 cents per
ordinary share) - 9,884
19,780 29,652
(¢)  Nature and purpose of reserves () REZHEEREN
(i) Exchange reserve (i) B R

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange &R FE#EBIER BELBINETS 2 456 M TERE I INE K
differences arising from the translation of the financial =& o FEERBENGFTBERM T 4(0) BIE °

statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in

accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 4(b).

(i)  Capital reserve (i) EXREE

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual — BRZANFEHE B IERIBE 5T BRI 5 4(0) FTRANARR AR B AR X T
or estimated number of unexercised share options granted ~AFMEE REME BB AT CEBERMAE RITEHERES
to employees of the Group and other eligible persons E&)AFERER o

recognised in the accordance with the accounting policy

adopted for share-based payments in note 4(p).
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23. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(c)  Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii)  PRC statutory reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing the PRC
enterprises, certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, which
are wholly foreign-owned enterprises, are required to allocate
at least 10% of their after-tax profit but before dividend
distribution to general reserve until the reserve has reached
50% of their registered capital. The general reserve can only
be used, upon approval by the relevant authority, to offset
accumulated losses or increase capital. Appropriation to
general reserve during the year amounted to approximately
HK$1,693,000 (2019: HK$5,082,000).

(d)

At 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to shareholders of the Company
was HK$62,169,000 (2019: HK$12,853,000). After the
end of the reporting period, the directors proposed a final
dividend of 4 HK cents (2019: 4 HK cents) per ordinary
share and a special dividend of 2 HK cents (2019: nil HK
cents) per ordinary share totaling HK$29,670,000 (2019:
HK$19,780,000). These dividends have not been recognised
as liabilities at the end of the reporting period.

(e)

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

Distributability of reserves

Capital management

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes judgements
to the capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

MREEBRAR —T_TFFH

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABE®BEN)

23. EBEX - - REERRE @)
() RBEZIHEERBWNGE)
(i) PEEERE

KBRPREZEEMETHOEZER - AEBZHENE
REBINEBEDLE  BIE&ZL10% D Z2TRERFIHEE
TRHER EERmBEIMEARANL0% AL - Ti@HEE
QAEERE RIERRIKEZRBBEIIEINER - AF
ERRELBHEEEFENRA1,693,0007T (2019 4F :
75,082,000 7T) °

(d) FAIDEREE

MH2020F 12 A1 HEFTAIDR FARRREZ S5
72 7 162,169,000 7T (2019 4F : /& #12,853,0007T ) °
AMEE  EBEETIRERL BRI SEE 410
(20194F : B 44L) R EE AR BN B 8E 240 (2019
BT - A5 29,670,000 7T (20194 « B
19,780,000 7T) ° MAFRE IR ELREARERARE °

() EXEHE
AEBECEABEATERANAREREB Z HELEY
e DASEE AR AE 1 AR SRR A 01 3R I TR EL A AR A A 3R
HAE - AEREBERERBRKTERZABERSE RIAS R
RAZ2ERES -

AEETHLERRIEEAGEBUERT FES O HAA
R RERZE2EHAEEANNR  REKLERBR TEL
WENEHR DB 2 A -
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SE M RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

23. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(e) Capital management (Continued)

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debt
as total debt (which includes trade and other payables) plus
unaccrued proposed dividends. Adjusted capital comprises
all components of equity less unaccrued proposed
dividends.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s
strategy, which was unchanged from 2019, was to maintain
the net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at reasonable level.
In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31 December 2020
and 2019 was as follows:

23. EBEX - - REERRE @)

(e) EXEE(E)

HITREN -2 AREENFABRHEHAREARLES
HEERHEARLE - sl - AEEZRBRE(BRES N

Hib AR R RS TR R ERE - &

ABEABEMAEDR TR ZZHRERE

V20205 - AEBEZREEINFEI 20195 — 1 - REFHFA
s BB AR A IEKF - %T”&H‘Xuﬂ?ﬁttﬁﬂ P ARH
Tﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁxﬁﬁ%ﬂx%ZHQ BT - REBAR TR
R BE %ﬁZEEﬂéﬁ:ﬁzﬁ%ﬁ?Mﬁﬂ &I -

MR2020% K 201912 A 31 H 2 /F B B EEHABERADN T,
FlanT -

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Current liabilities: mEALE
Trade and other payables E 5 REMERIRER 297,897 229,428
Add: Proposed dividends hn o ERIREERR S 29,670 19,780
Net debt 8&FE 327,567 249,208
Total equity e 655,625 605,954
Less: Proposed dividends R BRIk ERRE (29,670) (19,780)
Adjusted capital RABRER 625,955 586,174
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio FE EEFFER K LLH 52% 43%
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23. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(e) Capital management (Continued)

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for
the Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it
has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares.

The Company receives a report from the share registrars on
substantial share interests showing the non-public float and
it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit
throughout the year. As at 31 December 2020, 69% (2019:
68%) of the shares were in public hands.

24. COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2020 not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were as
follows:

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABE®BEN)

23. EBEX - - REERRE @)

(e) EXEE(E)

ME—1EONERIE I B AR KRR - BREANEE AR ATRE
£ EARFREMAE DED 25% AR o

AAGRBIREBREEMANRS - REPRIFLFET

MAERMED  WARPZAREFNEET25% K
fR - B2020% 12 A31 H * ARIEH69% (2019 : 68%) Hy
f&5 e

24. ARIE

7 20204F 12 A 31 BER & B 53RE5 8 B IR BB R & A%
T

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BET T
Contracted for: BEL
- Purchase of equipment and moulds - B& 5 %% 18 A 4,454 631

25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: credit risk, concentration risk, liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and foreign currency risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

FREBEARAR —T-_TFFR

25. B EREE

AEENEHEEAESBYERAR  FERR - £HE
% BREMEAR - MERERMINERER o KB
BREREEFIZRNEBTISO AL - IREY
AEBEMBEENBETNEERER )
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GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(VBB REM)
25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(@) Credit risk and concentration risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to bank
and cash balances and trade receivables. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Substantially all the Group’s bank and cash balances are
deposited in financial institutions in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The credit risk is limited as the majority of counterparties
are financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit rating agencies or stated-controlled
financial institutions with good reputations.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. The default
risks of the industry and country in which customers operate
also have an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 43% (2019: 44%); and 89%
(2019: 92%) of the trade receivables was due from the
largest customer and the five largest customers respectively.

In respect of trade receivables, management has a credit
policy in place and the exposure to the credit risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis. Individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability
to pay, and take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. Trade receivables are due
within 30 to 120 days from the date of billing. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. As the Group’s historical
credit loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments,
the loss allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer bases.

25. BiRERER @)

@ FEERRBREPEE

KEIWPEH ST ERERATRBSHERE SEKE
c BAEERRYELERFINGA B RE D SEY

%ﬁ?%ﬁ@

AEEFTERS RS SEEE —RERREERIFZE

ARPESRERE - BE2RIUEZEERREEREAX
ZHESGNHRERREETERBIREERTZNGE
W R BIRIES] 2 RIFEBHMHHE -

$%ﬁﬁ7¥<§€l’]1¥§ﬂﬁﬁ$x§i1ﬁfﬁ}5 R EPNESE= 67
2  ZTPREMETENERNEZOR R B ERRER

E/Z

ﬁ
CEREE/N  RIREHER  AEBNEERKBET
[E543% (20194F : 44%) : FEUN'E HER A AI89% (2019
F:02%) D RIREBRARPMAFZAES °

REZRKERNS  TEEERTHNEERR g
BERMASNEERR - HRMBEERBREETEES
HMeRPHE#ETENEETE -  WETHEZTEHHEP
DAFEIHARS B E NIRRNERRE N WERRPH
R B REFAEMGEIRIBENER - B 5 ERIERN S
FHREE HBFT0E 120 AR H - AEBE—K T 2M

BEPWEUEAS -

AEENENEAFESNEREEEENSRIEES
FEWRIRR) BN - AR ARENEL EEBELRY
AEPIAFEFPEHNBARATEBREER  HILERS
HMENBAEB TS E—PROAKEN AT, -
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
(@) Credit risk and concentration risk (Continued)

The directors of the Company have considered the credit
risk of trade receivables and note that there was no actual
loss nor significant past due experience over the past
10 years, including periods of unfavourable economic
conditions. The directors consider the aggregate risks arising
from the possibility of credit loss on trade receivables are not
significant and no allowance for credit losses were made as
at 31 December 2020.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivable are set
out in note 17.

(b)

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

Liquidity risk

FREBEARAR —T-_TFFR

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABE®BEN)

25. HIEEMER )
@ FERRBREDRREE)

ARFREECEREZRNFENEERR @ RIFBET
FREVEETEBBREANBHRA - BEERHLEER
TERE - BEERA EHERFBEARHREEBERE
AR AE AR - BR20209F 12 A31 B EIEH(E
BEIaRE -

ERARBERBSRRERMELANEERRNE-—FE
e BN MIFE7

(b) ELRBUREE

AEFEET EREBERELESERSEERE &
FEENRSBSRERENERARNREER - A&
ZHREATHERRERERZRBMTR  UHELE
REMReRHERITNREEZFR 2 EFS - NEIEEH
REREAREEESR -
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SE M RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABEMREN)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities which are based on the contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to

pay:

25. BIERER(®)

(b) E&RBMEREE)

TRIMAEBEZETEMEHEBEERRERRZHRTE
RS - ERERAN LARBMBRZRER (BRER
BHEZNE - MEFHHERHEERBERAR 82
ME)RAREREREERZ AMGE ¢

2020 2019

Total Total
contractual Within contractual Within
undiscounted 6 months undiscounted 6 months
cash flow oron cash flow oron
Carrying  HiHEAH demand Camying  #iHEAH demand
amount MEERE  6EARI amount  RUEERE  6EAAT
fRAE ZRER  BREIN REE LREN  ERENR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Trade and other payables BHREMENER 297,895 297,895 297,895 229,428 229,428 209,428
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
and cash balances which were contracted at short-term
variable rates and expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (i) below.

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABE®BEN)

25. BIERER(®)

() FIRER

EREMREFERBZOTEEH
REEZF

AEBZAERRERER
/%@Jﬂf&%\ﬁ$%lﬁfﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬂ$@ i o
EERBEEEERWHI (T

(i) Interest rate risk (i) T == 7 Bsx
2020 2019

Effective Effective

interest interest

rate rate

% %
BRAI=E HK$’000 BRRF & HK$’000
% BT T % BT IT
Fixed rate bank deposits SR1TE BRTF A EE AR 0.99 206,728 2.11 196,870
Variable rate bank deposits ﬁEme,ﬁHﬁrA/¥,m\ 0.09 83,002 0.12 47,226

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group’s profit after tax and retained earnings
by approximately HK$693,000 (2019: HK$460,000)
respectively. Other components of equity would not be
affected (2019: HK$NIl) by changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2019.

MREEBRAR —T_TFFH

(i) BREDH

20209 12 A 31 HEATA £ B B EZHEHFTENIE)
T o fEEF— AR R R, A 100 86T %“%ﬁM/
BAORER 2 BRE BB RADEFNBLODRE %693000
JL(20194F : ¥ 460,0007T) - EfEETZF RS
2 (2019F : BEZIT) ©

N ERBRESNEREFNEZEH O RNMERRTEME
o WEEARNZBESRBTERIETEMET
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MEEREPARPE AR EBLE 2T - DITIE
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GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REN)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk

(i) Foreign currency transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and expense transactions that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily US$ and GBP.

(i) Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of trade receivables and payables held in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate, the Group ensures that the
net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by buying or
selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to
address short-term imbalances.

25. BiRERER @)
(d)y MR
(i) HER S

AEBEZHRNUAZFREEHNEEBUIN 2 EHIIE
ZWAFST R ZAAGESNER R - BREREARZEEE

(i) CRRAERAH
FRUEM 2RSS 2 BEHE 2 R E LR
BT - AEESENEEEHOTTEN  URE
sk A S E HOME - RRFHERERE—BTREN
12 -

(iii)  The following table details the Group’s exposure at  (iii) ~ TFRIITAKE R HEBHRETER LB LERIAT)
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising BREEBLIINM—RBERIENEENBEMARSL
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in HEERE
a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate.

2020 2019
US$’000 GBP’000 US$’000 GBP’000
FErx T8 FET T 5

Trade and other receivables 2 5 & E th fE U BR FX 28,189 908 26,207 248

Bank and cash balances  $R1T RIS A8 36,698 248 31,368 35

Trade and other payables & 5 N E b E{BRFX (8,064) - (6,992) -

Net exposure arising from R Z BE K

recognised assets and BEFBUFAE
liabilities 56,823 1,156 50,583 283

126

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

25.

(d)
(iv)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change in the
Group’s profit after tax and retained earnings in response to
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates
to which the Group has significant exposure at the end of
the reporting period.

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABE®BEN)

25. BiRERER @)
(d) MRS (&)
(iv) BRBESH

THREEARERARERRIEMEAZEARRZERZ
BIE A LR EYHIRIR R ETIE MR E BAEK 2 BB E) -

2020 2019
Effect Effect
Increase/ on profit Increase/ on profit
(decrease) in after tax and (decrease) in after tax and
foreign retained foreign retained
exchange earnings exchange earnings
rate HERBIE rate HERTE
E=xigm, BARRE bEE 3 0, A Ko AR
O 4) BRlzE CRA) BNz &
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BB T
British Pounds e 5% 503 5% 122
(5%) (503) (5%) (122)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after tax and retained earnings measured in
the respective functional currencies, translated into Hong
Kong Dollar at the exchange rate ruling as at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in foreign exchange rates occurred at the end
of the reporting period and applied to each of the Group
entities’ exposure to currency risk for non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date, and that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. In
this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between
the HK$ and the US$ would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the US$ against
other currencies. The percentage of increase and decrease
in foreign exchange rate represents the management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rates over the period until the next annual
reporting date. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2019.

MREEBRAR —T_TFFH

ERFIRZOMGERIEZRER AR BB ZBRBRE D
LEBNEEERBREMRZER(LE2RME) LR RE

TCRtE 2 AR 2 #8851 -

FREDMIIBREXEHNHERREL - XEARAK
SESEERRNZANFEZHITESMTAMARZE
Rk MABEMBAZRR(LENR)RFTE - 5L
b BRAETHEE T 2HDERB I GRRTHBEME
BeBEMXEATE IR 2B EEEERTESR

REET—EFERSHRIEMEZAEATREES) - £1T
DM ERE B 2019 FATRIE 2 £REAER o

127



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SE M RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABEMREN)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 25, H¥ERER @)
(Continued)
() Categories of financial instruments at 31 (¢) BZE2020F 12831 BNERTAER
December 2020
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Financial assets: EREE
Financial assets measured LA SERAGTEM S RMEE
at amortised cost 598,291 520,657
Financial liabilities: S@as:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost LAk ANzt EM SR EE 297,897 229,338

()  Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair value as at 31 December 2020 and
2019.

26. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

() Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group

represents amounts paid to the Company’s executive
directors as disclosed in note 10.

(f)

AFE

FiEemI Az ABRESFEEE N 2020 F & 20194F 12 A 31

BZAHEEEARTR -

26.

(2)

BB cEARS R

TEEERAENE

SEFZEBRBAEMEBEXNARBRITEELMH T
104 5% -

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BET T

Short-term employee benefits MHIE B EA 11,898 11,948
Post-employment benefits & AREF 702 702
12,600 12,650
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26. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(Continued)

(b) Other related party transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
entered into an agreement with RJW Technology Company
Limited (“RJW Technology”) in acquiring one (2019: one)
unit of machinery at a consideration of HK$950,000 (2019:
HK$950,000), which was delivered to the Group’s premises.
The amount payable to RJW Technology of HK$950,000
(2019: HK$NIl) was included in accrued charges and other
payables disclosed in note 19. RJW Technology is controlled
by 10% and 80% by each of the two executive directors,
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man and Dr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin
respectively.

(9)

Balances with subsidiaries are disclosed in the Company’s
statement of financial position contained in note 29(a).

Balances dealt with related parties

27. EVENTSAFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed
a final dividend and a special dividend. Further details are
disclosed in note 23(b).

FREBEARAR —T-_TFFR

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABE®BEN)

26, BBAZEARZRESRE)

(b) HAuuEEEAFIEE

BHZE2020F 12 A31 B IEFE - AARERIWHITERA
A (TRIWHE AT ) 5732 #3758 - DA 6 950,000 7T (2019 4F -
A 0950,00070) IR BB E14(2019F : 18)KE - T
R B AR E B Y E - FE RIW T A FRIE 7 % 950,000
JL(20194F : ) Bt AMRE19 PR ERT & A H (h jE
MERFF . RIW T MM R TE S FRGUTE R =S
T RIS 10% K 80% HE#f -

(c) PRBAMLARR

EHRERAMB AR ZEHRCEARR RN BRI ER Z M T
29(a) PR o

27. A{EFHREIE
AFEBHE I EEREDRERPBEREFRIRE - 5
ERMEE23(0) °
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GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

28. SUBSIDIARIES’ INFORMATION

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities
of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless
otherwise stated.

28. MEARER
WEALEY ¥F AERARZMBARFBEOT - B
BHRIBIL - FTEE 2 AR LA -

Particulars of Proportion of
issued and paid ownership interest held
Place of Place of up capital by the Company Principal
Name of company incorporation operation BERTR NG activities
RRER Bz LEhE BRRAZFE BYER TEEHR
Mass Top Corporation The British Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100% Property holding
Virgin Islands A 1REERER1ET RENE
ERRNS
Raymond (Panyu Nansha) Electrical The PRC The PRC Registered capital 100% Manufacture
Appliances Development Company H i US$22,380,000 and sale of
Limited (Note) AR electrical home
MR (EBEY) ERER 22,380,000 appliances
ARAA (M) RERHE
FHES
Note: BisE -

The statutory financial statements of Raymond (Panyu
Nansha) Electrical Appliances Development Company
Limited for the financial year ended 31 December 2020,
prepared under generally accepted accounting principles
applicable in the PRC, have been audited by BN &5t
R EISPT AR QA

Raymond (Panyu Nansha) Electrical Appliances
Development Company Limited is a wholly foreign owned
enterprise registered under PRC Law.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(B AEEN)
29. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 29. ZATEKEER
COMPANY
(@) Statement of financial position @ FBRRR
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T T T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - B MR 1,833 2,443
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR E 173,703 173,703
175,536 176,146
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 5,770 1,898
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b REUER TR 230,200 191,842
Bank and cash balances RIT RIS 45 277,335 239,054
513,305 432,794
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables 2 5 R EAMER IR 102,004 82,303
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHI B A RIBR X 58,763 48,882
Current tax liabilities BNEAfIE B & 2,382 1,383
Dividends payable FERTAR B 286 282
163,435 132,850
Net current assets REEETFE 349,870 299,944
Total assets less current liabilities REERREBERE 525,406 476,090
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEE 148 148
NET ASSETS EEZFE 525,258 475,942
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERRf#HE
Share capital PR 462,333 462,333
Reserves 1 62,925 13,609
TOTAL EQUITY iR 525,258 475,942

Approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2021 and

are signed on its behalf by:

Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
'R
Director

EF

MREEBRAR —T_TFFH

7202143 A 25 HEEE S & NIRRT -

Wong, Raymond Man Hin
BEXH
Director

EF
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABEMREN)

29. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 29. ZXATRHMEER®)

COMPANY (Continued)

() Details of changes in the Company’s (P) FEREI A QR E B R A R A F Y

individual components of reserve during the BB
year:
Share Capital Retained Total
capital reserve earnings equity
R ERGHE REET AR
(note 23(a)) (note 23(c)(ii)
(PizE23(a) (=T 23(c))
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 BETT BETT BETT BT
At 1 January 2019 H2019F1 A1 A& 461,807 859 31,515 494,181
Changes in equity for 2019: 2019/EREE
Profit and total comprehensive AEEH k2 ERELE
income for the year - - 20,842 20,842
Dividends approved in respect HAERS
of the:
— current year -AF 23(b)(i) - - (9,886) (9,886)
— previous year - 23(o)(i) - - (29,652) (29,652)
Shares issued under share BRECETZRN
option scheme
- gross proceeds -Elz 23(a)(i) 457 - - 457
—transfer from capital reserve -HERREEY 69 (69) - -
Share options lapsed BUBRRE - (34) 34 -
526 (103) (18,662) (18,239)
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 12 A 31 AR 462,333 756 12,853 475,942
At 1 January 2020 W2020F1 A1 B&s 462,333 756 12,853 475,942
Changes in equity for 2020 2020 FgEm &
Profit and total comprehensive AEEH k2 ERELE
income for the year - - 78,986 78,986
Dividends approved in respect HERE
of the:
— current year -AF 23(b)(i) - - (9,890) (9,890)
— previous year - 23(o)(ii - - (19,780) (19,780)
- - 49,316 49,316
At 31 December 2020 M2020F 12 A 31 A&t 462,333 756 62,169 525,258
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30. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
Significant increase in credit risk

ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL
for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3
assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9
does not define what constitutes a significant increase in
credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased the Group takes into account
qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable
forward-looking information.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis or reducing balance
basis over the estimated useful lives. The Group reviews
annually the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any. The depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted
if there are significant changes from the previous estimation.

MREEBRAR —T_TFFH

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABE®BEN)

300 EE¥EREEMRE

FERAET B RENEZH &
1= B R B EEE 1 b

F-RBREENEHEEBERASEN 12EARBEES
BORETE  IFE _AE=—RREERESFN A
HEEEENBETE E-BREENEERR A BRE
RUARBEIRN - ZEECBBREF KR - BBYHR
EREAFORUBEEERRBELNNBRERELTE
oA -REENGEERRETERIZENE  AEEE
ZRAEMAEBFHNEEREEMEEER -

FRENEPSES: N EX-2 Y

TXEmARARKRNEZERRLHEHRMEF THARE
MEMEZRR  ZERILKEFEEHEERBEN
REEAR T EYRFREELENHENECRR -

(a) TE

Y BENERENMEREEENE LSRR RAR
BEMGBUERAFTFHIE - SESEFRANHZEEE
MR EIR R EREMET B - REKRMITERSZER
JERE AT EENERE LM -
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GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(UBE®REN)

30. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b) Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

In considering the impairment loss that may be required for
certain property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and investments in subsidiaries, the recoverable amount of
the asset needs to be determined. The recoverable amount
is the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and the
value in use. It is difficult to estimate precisely the fair value
price because quoted market prices for the assets may not
be readily available. In determining the value in use, expected
cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to their
present value, which requires significant judgement relating
to items such as level of revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation
of the recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections of
items such as revenue and operating costs.

(c) Impairment of trade receivables

The Group considers the ECLs of trade receivables are
based on management’s estimate of the lifetime ECL which
is taking into account the credit loss experience, ageing of
overdue trade receivables, customers’ repayment history
and customers’ financial position and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic conditions,
all of which involve a significant degree of management
judgement.

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast general economic conditions.
The information about the ECLs and the Group’s trade
receivables are disclosed in note 17 and 25(a). If the financial
condition of the customers or the forecast economic
conditions were to deteriorate, actual loss allowance would
be higher than estimated.
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(b) V¥ BERIEREFELEHRE

ZRIETYER BELRE ERAEEERRHERR
ZHRERAWEEEREHRBERER  BEETEEZA
WEEHE O EAFEEBREREERNE Z2KS
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LEMAFMETEUR -

() EZERKRNEE

AEERAREZREEFNBREEBREREEBYHF
BMEMEEBRENMGR  ZAAZTETEEBELR
BHE S RERRO KRR - BEPNERREME PO 5
AR DA B B B AN ORI ) AR B8 A BN A - PR BB LETR A
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30. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d) Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions and
interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates
the tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatment of transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in
tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deduction differences. Those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future profit will be available against
which the unused tax credit can be utilised, consequently
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred
tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

(e) Allowance for slow-moving and obsolete
inventories

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged inventories analyses,
projections of expected future saleability of goods and
management experience and judgement. Based on these
reviews, write-down of inventories will be made when the
carrying amounts of inventories fall below their estimated net
realisable value. Due to changes in customers’ performance,
actual sale of goods may be different from estimates
and profit or loss could be affected by differences from
estimates.

MREEBRAR —T_TFFH

GEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABE®BEN)
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(e) HERBEFERE
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EBETREREGEEFREEFEMEFERE BAEFE
ANEs  BEREESELATEZEERLFTAERZE
Ak &R
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IEHERE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR #REHEHER
LOSS
Year ended 31 December
HIE12A31HILEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT IT T T BT T BET T BT T
Revenue A 1,019,442 997,697  1,285918 1,155,578 | 1,289,515
Profit before taxation BRI 72,704 46,445 62,298 41,910 76,879
Income tax expense FriSfi s H (21,693) (9,983) (9,724) (2,937) (13,661)
Profit for the year PiN/NEI Y Y e
attributable to R 2 am A
shareholders of the
Company 51,011 36,462 52,574 38,973 63,218
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL #ZEB#EMRRE
POSITION
As at 31 December
12HA31B#&E
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T BT T BET T BT T
Property, plant and WIZE - BB R
equipment 145,331 165,581 184,011 169,692 153,021
Interests in leasehold RIBEEHERF1E
land held for own Bz iR
use under operating
leases 7,251 7,403 6,664 - -
Right-of-use assets FREEE - - - 8,973 8,833
Deferred tax assets FEFIIB & 4,910 5,296 3,296 3,424 2,739
Net current assets MEVEEFE 414,705 417,815 418,379 424,038 490,789
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBEE (308) (734) (181) (173) (167)
Net assets BEFE 571,889 595,361 612,169 605,954 655,215
Share capital &N 448,167 453,723 461,807 462,333 462,333
Reserves Gt 123,722 141,638 150,362 143,621 192,882
Total equity RN TI R E LS 571,889 595,361 612,169 605,954 655,215
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